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Focus
DRMNG LEAN NTO
OUR DAILY WORK

Lean not new to Masco Our

busir ass ur its have been using

Kazen and Six Sigma principles

and problem soMng for many

years Our focus 0009 was to

everage our existing capabil

Ws area and drive can think

ing and practices throughout the

ertire enterprise Our effoks are

paying off

sir gb week ot Kaizen aotMty

at Dolta Faucet plant yielded

over$2millior anruazed

savrgs

One ot our cabinet compan es

orrp eted over 500 Kaizen

wer ts and ovm 100 Six Sgr ia

projects that resufted in over $9

ifior annualzed savings

One our wir dow companes

co etch over 150 Ka zen

orojects that ed to over $3 mik

ion nnualzed savings

We cortirue to discover new

ways to mprove our buso

ess WH we celebrate these

results nterr aty we have been

recognized externaty as wel

Karer Strauss president of

Masco Cabnet was named

20E Lear Six Sigma CEO of

the Year by the Worldwide Con

ver tier and Business Forum

Our Culpeper Virginia cabinet

ac hty was one of orly 10 taciS

es selected as Ii dust Weeks

Best Plants for 2009

Ma Rp

MASCO BUSNESS SYSTEM ACTION

The Masco Busness System MBS ur rage rae

work to consistently develop and exec te sr atcg

CUSTOMER FOCUS LEAN NNOVAflON QUALiTY TALENT

The MBS butds strengThens and apr vtma

ties by assuring the standardizat ar

manage measure and repeL our bus ass

Through CUSTOMER FOCUS
we create value from custoiaer

insights We fotow the total cus

temer experience by identing

our customers assessing thOr

needs ar wants develop ng so

tions that address those reeds

obtairirg IeedbacWor ontiru us apr remmr

LEAN tormal poess Ta JO vu
waste all aspects our bLisnas We
creat ng can culture if rougL ur ir rgar

INNOVATION our ab ity to at tn iou

compellrg customer solutions ozorm .nrvt

or through orograms suc as thc .Masc Ii sa icr

whch ercoureges bus ress ur ts ax cc hr ak4hr gh

gammchang ng ir nevatiens tn ucratc supp

QUALITY our ab
lity

deliver sL product

vice exccllence Our erterpriso wine Ow ry Ma nge mrt

System desigr ed to prey dc rr nclr or ir uc us

ra provement id the casurera rae rack ag tI

ot quality

TALENT initiatives strengther ur ab ty acr ccc

and retain outstand ng peopc wr tr ow mt

to win We have orcar act ma jna

process that includes developmnr aid cc as or

for our eadership team
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rmu Mc



Innovation
GREAT DESGN GREAT PERFORMANCES
GREAT SOLUTONS

We cont nue de iver nnovative cost ehecr ye and environmen

tay-frendy soutions for our customerw

De ta Faucet Coft pany yes you hard th ts touch tech

no ogy owng you to stab stop the flow of water whh Omp
touch anyp ace on the taucet DAM0ND Sea Techroogy fau

cets are easy to instO and provde org- astng pehormarce

gard wndows Wer an cas or way oh osa anergy-eff icr

repDcement wndows wth programs custom zed by brate

zones

Hansgrone piumb ng de9gns were recently chosen tor the
You know that you have an

Burj Kha the words taHest bOding and the oegant
nnovatve ard successtu

Mandafin Orerta Barceona Hote
product when receivos

The VemeTM system da vera groundbreak

rg whoe-bome ghfing ar.d ivng system

wth oatte esstechnobgas anabing

ustomers to progrars and create muhipe

ight ng scenes that can be contrO ed by

srge wkOass movaba switch

TOurs Scanb rk manufactures furniturs that comp as wit Dan

sh Moor Chmata Laba.ing standards Tvi um Scanbirk Oso

eader Me ndusW when it comes to energy abc art ftanu

facturing use ot wood matara0 fron cad fled sustaraHa forests

and re yc ad packagAg mateha

Loe Hardvmas Saa PrO bad offrs saetfl pnd
ucts to make the home baTh environment safer and ix ore vab

durnga stages of ha

The Envronmants For ving program eadirg nationa

turn-key progrars das.gnad to ass st bui dars construct ng

arargy-effdent homes usrg the prrcpAs of bOdng Or

So far more than W0000 homes have bean buh appyng the

Envkonrnrs ts For Lvng spachcatons

VTAUTY NDEX

We ast mate that 30 parcert of our

net saas of ixarufacturad products

comes fron- product nnovO ons that

have bean ntroduced durng the

past three years

The Home Depots 2009

novaflon of the Year Award

Ths years nrar The

Home Depots top aix aid

Bebr Prcmum Pus Utra

nierior pAnt Th nnovatve

product prov des ar extra

durab pa nt fir sh that resists

moAtura stas scuffs and

add tior to provid ng

ft consurs er ua ty

pr duct th oa rt and phmar

ore covers fewer coats

savng than tme Tho suc

cess oi Os raw off arir
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padnarsh and commitment
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omer
WELLHOMEsM NEW HOME PERFORMANCE PROGRAM

Wth homeowners acreasing environmenta

awareness concerns about ns ng energy costs

energy ndependence and susta nabi ty and

desre to be comfohabe ther homes we are

excfted to ntroduce the WeHHon se Dcc

The rew We Home sece offered for the howe

provemert marke from Masco Home Ser

vCC5 nc MHS provdes horaeuwnc wth

ercrgy savings and improved comfork Ths new

program bu ds on the strong foundation of our

Envronrrents For Lying prog am for rew home

consiruction

Customers of the V2eHHome seice roceive

ccmpreher sive and hgorous who c-home

assessment based on buid ng scence

epoff outlnrg three possibe soution

packages weathenvat on custom

Professiona pa nting contractors

are typ cay dsce rnng wth the

brands they use the reta ers

they pat onze ToAd the produc

fvity ar proftabi ty of the profes

sona Behr Dune ed ts rect to

Pro program 2OO2 Tt program

is desgned to provde siirpc

ty ano effciercy to Ouiclers ano

professbna contractors through

an extensve etwork of serv cc

ocatons Currenhy avafabe

tnrough The Home Depot pro

desk the reef to Pro program

pa kage oa pa

gned to save ncrgy ar ira

Ass wan dcr tax ci cr

rehaff ard Ct er es mm
avaabe oth boi

The We Howe tear We soa
the apr werner Ma

Car tractar Sew ccs 00 prco cr

services ud no ar du as su

aton wndowsai rccibeati wo

systea wake ta as er rgv

and corWodabe he We Fbi wi
dudes aWhoe Hoe rergySavry

Guarantee

Our new We bra roqisra va

mCtipe ocatons Lv tb wd

offers professic usars stop wpo nc

HomeDepobercdpr gf remra art

eased or voumc TrC rcgisaea rr

siona cc serve rac to city si

profitaby anage AC mis miss as

are convar Arty paced Th Howe Pep

desk ai orders are ard Ui Ben
tu fix cc centers ar de we ado

charge rectlv to the job ste or be ca

Depot stare are avasb

By answerrg crcwssonas nwds oi Sc vce

and supped dkecty from th rranuf baa
are creatngc sL wersfr fe
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Commitment
PTS OUR COMMUMTYJTS OUR RESPONSBUTY

We are ftki ofference OUI coftmurrty erg 2000 and eahy

were aotve ft embers the ore mun es wb cb we do bus ess

2009 he Mas Corporator ourdat nvted ur ens ress un etc

cnerd grarts supped cf regrera chantabe organzatons cevctec

addressng hurger ana bcmeessness mcponse the Fourdator ip

pcrted 37 organ zaflons ndudbg teed canks aid partrec she terre Or ted

Way agencies aid otWr anfites wtb base reed servce pr gran totO

$325003 granC wa rerbted across tHe unty1 to J9a vatcre

focused on hunger end bore eessr ess

Our padrersh wtb Habbat for Humanty nterratora ratoray rooe

ar coO continues to strengthen ar grc The Maso Corporat en

Hour dater responded to the devasiafing eadb quae Hat with granT to

Hao tat for Human ty to ppod ts trar tiona hens tiat ye The at VE

provides Or the aying of permarei foundat or upon wr oh erect tere

pora housing owee the futuie by cermar ent ructure en ar care

our oaron The ounmor was ftnrneuatey ro urveu oywu uuw na Haf

re ef grants one to tb Amer car Red Cross rterr at era Re ef Fu aid the

secord to address medicO care so ut ens for rbe Hat an ceope

VVe are padouary proud of our pado patron grow doraakng crc cot that

serves After cas nomeOss veterars fad ty that natona code for per

rearent housng Sob edudd to oper the sprrg cr201 Detrot

the fadty provde veterars wth ad gr fled pace to cc and ac

ass to supportive servces addbor to narcFa support rumber

of our budness un ts prevdod manufactured products for the fa ty

addiror we are onuo of our empoyees wb reach cut to tree

emmuntes Exarepes rcude

Watk ns Mar ufactur err oyees dor ated more tb an 20 boxes

househod aid persend teres ncuding food ard Oh rg tc

North County Sc ut ens for Cnar ge Cafforn

Mas cc rporate cif cc err poyees docatee over 105 backi acks fi ed it sob cc snpp cc to

cod ementa schod

Macco Asia empoyees aised funds to pur nasa WO chairs and desks or as hoc robb.wesr

On na and neiped another cob cc set up ibra additor to race pub awareness cf env

ronmenta proMotion Masco Ace err poyees parted 2o trees Guar Town

We err brace our responsib ty to Ce commur ty and we are cm dent at cu aci are iv

fference



MAJOR BRANDS

CABINETS
AND RELATED
PRODUCTS

09 net sales $16 billion

21 of total net sales

The Company one of the argest U.S mar ufac

tmcrs ktchor and bath cabincL sog

ment includes assera ad an mady ft asseT

ktcher and bath abinets erie ohce rka

tions ontekainme.ct centers storage dr ts

bookcases and ktcben utilty odu ts

KraFbMa

LUMSCANBIRK

PLUMBING
PRODUCTS

09 net sales $26 billion

33% of total net sacs

Masco has broad chai ne access ohs ly

through our prem er p1 imbing pr ducts bra ds

he Cox pany is worU oad snanu acturrg

umbing pr ducts faucets prura sing

fitl ngs and vs yes shower ceads and hard sr cay

ers bathtubs and shower enclosures and boss

see wha Defta can do

BRIO

INSTALLATON AND
OTHER SERVCES

09 net sales $1 billion

16% of total net sales

This segment udes Ihe sac ns Is sac

distribution of nsulat or as wal as other bu

ing products The Company cc ot Tho args

providers of vanety of nstalled produc

homebuilders across tie Un tea Sta es

MSO
Contracton

Scrv ces

Atners

DECORATWE
ARCHITECTURAL
PRODUCTS

09 net sales $17 billion

22% of total net sales

The Comoany is one of ft ragest suooi era

architec tura pair ar exterior wood care pr

ucrs to the Ur ted States and Canadia dm

yoursef markets Tb segmert 550 ncsdes

cabinct door wrdow ano other bardwar

BEHR
GOOD BETTER BEHR

ver

jtITh

OTHER SPECIALTY
PRODUCTS

09 net sales $O6 billion

Bo of otal sales

Maac D10 jthro a3ns raaDia rc

vnyl ard fiborglass wndows acne paly tfe

western Uni5ed States This segmer cludos

ndows wndow frame cora por en and pa

doors both in the and U.K and ape gun

tackers staples ar her astei rg taos

ivu rai Pc
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Our new energy packages are at least 2O% more efficient

And compared to others 100% easier to sell
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emen
RESPONSBUTY FOR
ANANCAL STATEMENTS

Management Is responsIble for th fa mess and

ntogrfty of the Companys conso dated financ

statements In order to net this rcspons ty

managemert maintans rorma oCces ai pro

cedures that are consistent with high standards

of accounting and administrative pract ces

whrch am regularly communrcotpd within the

organization In addhon management maintains

program of interna auddng wthin the Com

pany to examine and evaluate the adequacy

and effect veness of estabfshed internal controls

related to Company pofcies procedures and

objectives

FORWARDLOOKING
STATEMENTS

OuAnnuff Repoto SharoLoders contans statm

ments ref ecting our vi ws about the Companys

Sture pehormance These statements are fosrd

looking statements under the Fbvate Secuhtias

Ltigaton Reform Act of gg5 Actua resu ts may

lffm is ens fror tb resufts discussed in such

onoard Fookho staten en For an explaiaton of

va mor thm soy affect our pebormsnce read

ms or to the Risk Factors section of our

Annua RepoC on Form 0K included herein as wof

as the comment at the beffnndg of Managements

Dc ussoi ard Analysis of HnsnciaI Conditon and

Resets of Cperatons in that Repod The Company

undedakes no obhgaticn to update any toardook

Ug statemen whether as resuft of new informm

oi uue events or ctbcncse

The repod of tI Companys Ii .dc doi Re

isterod Public Account ng Rim inc cc

accompanyng Fo 1OK woes cp or

on the Companys conso Ida ad fear

ments ani the effect van ss

over fnancial repoding based its

ductad in accordar cc wlh sta dards

Public Company Accour ii Cvars ot Bc

U.S The AuCt Coms cc the Brard

Directors Teats per ooUo ly ma sq

ment and the lrdapandcC Rgistercd

counting Firm to provida ovms ght

to the Con panys finan eoodir pro
and system ntarna conff Is

NONGAAP DSCLOSURE

TL Company bal eves tL car ci 5P Cer

eraiyAccptad Accourt Prnpen oma
assures ar ratios used in is agrno

may providi users of thD snc mD ra she

additonal maaningfu con psi isor baw ci ur

rent rasult and rasu ts in pr or ci od Di

oerst ens Non-GP born or sr

ratios should be viewed ii dddfo

altarnatva for the Compor ys rcpoded

dar accoLint ng prircip as iar ace

United States

r-

9AnF



BOARD OF DRECTORS

Denn Archer

Chahman and Ch at Execut ye Qff car

DennA Archer FLLC and

Chahman Emeritus

ckinson Wrght FLLC

Thomas Denomme

Ret red Vice Chahman ar

Chie Admin stralve Offce

Chpis er Corporat on

Aninony Eahey Jr

Chairman and Chat Executve Officer

DIE Energy Company

VerreC stock

Retired armar ard Fresoert

Bar One Corporat on

Davd Johnston

Eras cent and ce Cf ancO or

of the Unversy of Wateroo Ontari Canada

Mchae Losh

Ret red Ch at Hnar cia OAcer

and Executive Vice Free dent

GenerA Motors Corporat on

Rcbaro Manoogar

CLan ian of the Boa

Mae Corporation

LsaA Fayre

ce Chairman and CL at Fir or cia OCcer

Taubroar Centers rc

Mary Ar Van Losaren

Retred Cha rman or Ch Exe

Krey Ostrbuthg Compary

Tmothy Wadhams

FreAdent and Ch at Executve Off ar

Masco Corporation

tve Officer

aa
Tt
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington DC 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-5794

MASCO CORPORATION
Exact name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter

Delaware 38-1794485

State of Incorporation I.R.S Employer Identification No
21001 Van Born Road Taylor Michigan 48180

Address of Principal Executive Offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including area code 313-274-7400

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Name of Each Exchange
Title of Each Class On Which Registered

Common Stock $1.00 par value New York Stock Exchange Inc

Zero Coupon Convertible Senior

Notes Series Due 2031 New York Stock Exchange Inc

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12g of the Act

None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act Yes li No El

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act Yes No I1

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past

90 days Yes II No El

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months

or such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No El

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not

be contained to the best of Registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in

Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K Ii

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in

Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act Check one

Large accelerated filer IZ Accelerated filer El Non-accelerated filer El Smaller reporting company El

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange

Act Yes No IZ

The aggregate market value of the Registrants Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant on June 30 2009 based
on the closing sale price of $9.58 of the Registrants Common Stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange on such date
was approximately $3338607000

Number of shares outstanding of the Registrants Common Stock at January 31 2010

358778000 shares of Common Stock par value $1 .00 per share

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrants definitive Proxy Statement to be filed for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by

reference into Part III of this Form 10-K
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PART

Item Business

Masco Corporation manufactures distributes and installs home improvement and building products

with emphasis on brand-name consumer products and services holding leadership positions in their

markets We are among the largest manufacturers in North America of number of home improvement

and building products including faucets cabinets architectural coatings and windows and we are one of the

largest installers of insulation for the new home construction market We generally provide broad product

offerings in variety of styles and price points and distribute products through multiple channels including

directly to homebuilders and wholesale and retail channels Approximately 79 percent of our 2009 sales were

generated by our North American operations

Over the past three years we have experienced significant downturn in the home improvement and

new home construction markets As result we have been focused on the strategic rationalization of our

businesses including business consolidations plant closures headcount reductions system implementa

tions and other cost savings initiatives Throughout our businesses we have closed several plants and since

2006 we have closed over 90 locations formerly operated by our Installation and Other Services segment

We continue to focus on our cost structure and we are driving process improvement through the

implementation of the Masco Business System MBS The MBS is the integrated leadership practices

processes tools and capabilities that enable the effective and consistent execution of our strategies and

operating plans to maximize our full potential Through the MBS we are advancing our strategy of growing

organic sales based on better understanding of our customer needs and investing in new product

innovation We are also focusing on enhancing customer experience through improvements in product

quality In 2009 we introduced several new products including BEHR PREMIUM PLUS ULTRA INTERIOR

paint and the SIMPLICITYTM window by Milgard and we expanded the DIAMONDTM Seal Technology faucets

offered by Delta We have also begun several new initiatives including programs related to retro-fit home

energy efficiency services the sale of BEHR paint to professional painters through The Home Depot and the

combination of our North American cabinet business units to form Masco Cabinetry



We report our financial results in five business segments aggregated by similarity in products and

services The following table sets forth for the three years ended December 31 2009 the contribution of our

segments to net sales and operating profit Additional financial information concerning our operations by

segment and by geographic regions as well as general corporate expense net as of and for the three years

ended December31 2009 is set forth in Note to our consolidated financial statements included in Item of

this Report

Cabinets and Related Products

Plumbing Products

Installation and Other Services

Decorative Architectural Products

Other Specialty Products

Total

Cabinets and Related Products

Plumbing Products

Installation and Other Services

Decorative Architectural Products

Other Specialty Products

Total

In Millions
Net Sales

2009 2008 2007

$1674 $2276 2829

2564 3002 3272

1256 1861 2615

1714 1629 1768

584 716 929

$7792 $9484 $11413

Operating Profit Loss 1234
2009 2008 2007

$64 336

237 110 271

131 46 176

375 299 384

199 124 67

$218 $243 $1234

Amounts exclude discontinued operations

Cabinets and Related Products

Operating profit loss is before general corporate expense net charge for defined-benefit plan

curtailment accelerated stock compensation expense and loss gain on corporate fixed

assets net

Operating profit loss is before charge regarding the 2009 Cabinets and Related Products

litigation settlement of $7 million and the 2008 Installation and Other Services litigation settle

ment of $9 million

Operating profit loss includes impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets as

follows For 2009 Plumbing Products $39 million and Other Specialty Products $223 mil

lion For 2008 Cabinets and Related Products $59 million Plumbing Products $203 mil

lion Installation and Other Services $52 million and Other Specialty Products $153 million

For 2007 Plumbing Products $69 million and Other Specialty Products $50 million

In North America we manufacture and sell economy stock semi-custom assembled and ready-to-as

semble cabinetry for kitchen bath storage home office and home entertainment applications in broad

range of styles and price points In Europe we manufacture and sell assembled and ready-to-assemble

kitchen bath storage home office and home entertainment cabinetry These products are primarily sold in

the United States and in Europe under number of trademarks including KRAFTMAID DISTINCTIONS
WILUM-SCANBIRK and WOODGATE primarily to dealers and home centers and under the brands

MERILLAT MOORESTM and QUALITY CABINETS primarily to distributors and homebuilders for both the

home improvement and new home construction markets Cabinet sales are significantly affected by levels of

activity in both new home construction and retail consumer spending particularly spending for major home



improvement products significant portion of our sales for the home improvement market is made through

home center retailers

Over the past several years this segment of our business has been particularly affected by the downturn

in the home improvement and new home construction markets due to new homebuilders producing smaller

homes with smaller kitchens and end-consumers shifting to lower price point products In 2009 we closed

several manufacturing plants in this segment We are currently focused on improving cabinet production

efficiencies at lower volumes while maintaining our ability to respond effectively to increased demand when

the home improvement and new home construction markets improve By the end of 2010 we expect that we

will be able to manufacture common base cabinet at all of our plants that principally manufacture cabinets

for the new home construction market in North America We have also expanded our product offerings in this

segment to include the manufacture and sale of countertops in North America

The cabinet manufacturing industry in the United States and Europe is highly competitive with several

large competitors and numerous local and regional competitors In addition to price we believe that

competition in this industry is based largely on product quality responsiveness to customer needs product

features and selection Significant North American competitors include American Woodmark Corporation

and Fortune Brands Inc

In February 2010 we announced the combination of our Builder Cabinet Group and Retail Cabinet

Group to form Masco Cabinetry We believe that the creation of Masco Cabinetry will help us establish an

even stronger position to lead the cabinet category within the repair and remodel and new home construction

markets Masco Cabinetry will focus on all channels of distribution by offering broad portfolio of cabinets

and countertops at wide range of price points and in variety of styles

Plumbing Products

Our plumbing products segment sells wide variety of faucet and showering devices that are man

ufactured by or for us Our plumbing products are sold in North America and Europe under various brand

names including DELTA PEERLESS HANSGROH AXOR BRIZO BRASSTECH BRISTANTM

NEWPORT BRASS ALSONS SIRRUSTM and PLUMB SHOP Products include single-handle and

double-handle faucets showerheads handheld showers and valves which are sold to major retail accounts

and to wholesalers and distributors who sell these products to plumbers building contractors remodelers

smaller retailers and others

We believe that our products in this segment are among the leaders in sales in the North American and

European markets with American Standard Kohler Moen and Price Pfister as major brand competitors We

also have several European competitors primarily in Germany including Friedrich Grohe We face significant

competition from private label products including house brands sold by certain of our customers Many of

the faucet and showering products with which our products compete are manufactured in Asia The

businesses in our Plumbing Products segment source products from Asia and manufacture products in

the United States Europe and Asia

Other plumbing products manufactured and sold by us include AQUA GLASS MIROLIN and

AMERICAN SHOWER BATHTM acrylic and gelcoat bath and shower enclosure units shower trays and

laundry tubs which are sold primarily to wholesale plumbing distributors and home center retailers for the

North American home improvement and new home construction markets Our spas are manufactured and

sold under HOT SPRING CALDERA and other trademarks directly to independent dealers Major

competitors include Kohler Lasco Maax and Jacuzzi We sell HUPPE shower enclosures through

wholesale channels primarily in western Europe HERITAGETM ceramic and acrylic bath fixtures and faucets

are principally sold in the United Kingdom directly to selected retailers

Also included in the Plumbing Products segment are brass and copper plumbing system components

and other plumbing specialties which are soldto plumbing heating and hardware wholesalers and to home

center retailers hardware stores building supply outlets and other mass merchandisers These products are



marketed in North America for the wholesale trade under the BRASSCRAFT and BRASSTECH trademarks

and for the do-it-yourself market under the MASTER PLUMBER and PLUMB SHOP trademarks and are

also sold under private label

In addition to price we believe that competition in our Plumbing Products markets is based largely on

brand reputation product quality product innovation and features and breadth of product offering

substantial portion of our plumbing products are made from brass the major components of which are

copper and zinc From time to time we have encountered volatility in the price of brass In the past we have

implemented hedging strategy to attempt to minimize the impact of commodity price volatility hedging

strategy may be implemented in the future Legislation enacted in California and Vermont which became
effective in January 2010 mandates new standards for acceptable lead content in plumbing products sold in

those states Similar legislation may be considered by other states Faucet and water supply valve man
ufacturers including our plumbing product companies will be required to obtain adequate supplies of lead-

free brass or suitable alternative materials for continued production of faucets

In 2008 our Delta Faucet business introduced new water delivery system known as DIAMOND Seal

Technology DIAMOND Seal Technology reduces the number of potential leak points in faucet simplifies

installation and satisfies the legislation enacted in California and Vermont regulating the acceptable lead

content in plumbing products Delta Faucet in the near-term plans to incorporate DIAMOND Seal Tech

nology into its domestically manufactured single-handle faucets and in the future plans to expand the

application of the technology to most other Delta faucets The success of DIAMOND Seal Technology

depends on many factors including the performance of the technology and the markets acceptance of the

technology as well as Deltas ability to integrate successfully the technology into its most popular faucets

Installation and Other Services

Our Installation and Other Services segment sells installed building products and distributes building

products primarily to the new home construction market and to lesser extent the commercial construction

market throughout the United States In order to respond to the significant decrease in demand in the new
home construction industry over the past three years we have implemented several cost savings initiatives

involving the consolidation and closure of over 90 branch locations This rationalization has been accom
plished while maintaining our strategic presence in most of the top 100 Metropolitan Statistical Areas MSA
in the United States In addition over the past two years in this segment we have de-emphasized the

installation of certain non-insulation building products that are not core to our service offering including

windows and paint In addition to insulation our current offering of installed building products primarily

consists of gutters after-paint products framing components fireplaces garage doors and cabinets The

installation and distribution of insulation comprised approximately nine percent 11 percent and 12 percent of

our consolidated net sales for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Installed

building products are supplied primarily to custom and production homebuilders by our network of branches

located in most MSAs throughout the United States Distributed products include insulation insulation

accessories gutters roofing and fireplaces Distributed products are sold primarily to contractors and

dealers from distribution centers in various parts of the United States

Within this segment we have also begun several new initiatives related to improved energy efficiency

including energy audit services and related home improvements targeted at the retrofit and remodeling

markets

In addition to price we believe that competition in this industry is based largely on customer service and

the quality of installation service We believe that we are the largest national provider of installed insulation in

the new home construction industry in the United States Our competitors include several regional con
tractors as well as numerous local contractors and lumber yards We believe that our financial resources are

substantial compared to regional and local contractors



Decorative Architectural Products

We produce architectural coatings including paints primers specialty paint products stains varnishes

and waterproofing products The products are sold in the United States Canada China Mexico and

South America under the brand names BEHR KILZ CASUAL COLORS and EXPRESSIONS to the

do-it-yourself and professional markets through home centers paint stores and other retailers Net sales of

architectural coatings comprised approximately 20 percent 15 percent and 13 percent of our consolidated

net sales for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Competitors in the

architectural coatings market include large national and international brands such as Benjamin Moore

Glidden Olympic Sherwin-Williams Valspar and Zinsser as well as many regional and other national brands

In addition to price we believe that competition in this industry is based largely on product quality technology

and product innovation customer service and brand reputation

Our BEHR brand is sold through The Home Depot the segments and our largest customer The paint

departments at The Home Depot stores include the Behr color center and computer kiosk with the COLOR

SMART BY BEHR computerized color-matching system that enables consumers to select and coordinate

their paint-color selection In 2009 Behrs product offering was enhanced by the introduction of the BEHR

PREMIUM PLUS ULTRA INTERIOR paint which is high-quality low volatile organic compound interior

paint and primer in one The loss of this segments sales to The Home Depot would have material adverse

effect on this segments business and on our consolidated business as whole

Titanium dioxide is major ingredient in the manufacture of paint Shortages of supply and cost

increases for titanium dioxide in the past have resulted from surges in global demand and from production

capacity limitations Petroleum products are also used in the manufacture of architectural coatings Signif

icant increases in the cost of crude oil and natural gas lead to higher raw material costs e.g for resins

solvents and packaging as well as titanium dioxide which can adversely affect the segments results of

operations

Our Decorative Architectural Products segment also includes LIBERTY cabinet door window and

other hardware which is manufactured for us and sold to home centers other retailers original equipment

manufacturers and wholesale markets Key competitors in North America include Amerock Beiwith Umbra

and Stanley Decorative bath hardware and shower accessories are sold under the brand names FRANKLIN

BRASS and DECOR BATHWARE to distributors home center retailers and other retailers Competitors

include Moen and Globe Union

Other Specialty Products

We manufacture and sell vinyl fiberglass and aluminum windows and patio doors under the MILGARD

brand name to the home improvement and new home construction markets principally in the western United

States MILGARD products are sold primarily through dealers and to lesser extent directly to production

homebullders and through lumber yards and home center retailers In 2009 Milgard expanded its product

line with the introduction of the SIMPLICITY Window which is an energy-efficient vinyl window targeted to

value-conscious customers This segments competitors in North America include national brands such as

Jeld-Wen Simonton Pella and Andersen and numerous regional brands In the United Kingdom we

manufacture and sell windows related products and components under several brand names including

GRIFFINTM CAMBRIANTM PREMIERTM and DURAFLEXTM Sales are primarily through dealers and wholesalers

to the repair and remodeling markets although our Duraflex business is also supplier to other window

fabricators United Kingdom competitors include many small and mid-sized firms and few large vertically

integrated competitors In addition to price we believe that competition in this industry is based largely on

customer service and product quality

We manufacture and sell complete line of manual and electric staple gun tackers staples and other

fastening tools under the brand names ARROW and POWERSHOT We sell these products through

various distribution channels including home centers and other retailers and wholesalers Our principal North

American competitor in this product line is Stanley



Additional Information

We hold United States and foreign patents patent applications licenses trademarks and trade

names As manufacturer and distributor of brand name products we view our trademarks and other

proprietary rights as important but do not believe that there is any reasonable likelihood of loss of

such rights that would have material adverse effect on our present business as whole

All of our operating segments except the Plumbing Products segment normally experience stronger

sales during the second and third calendar quarters corresponding with the peak season for new

home construction and remodeling

We are subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment In addition to

responsibilities relating to environmental remediation our businesses are subject to other require

ments regarding protection of the environment and worker health and safety Our businesses are

subject to requirements relating to the emission of volatile organic compounds which may impact our

sourcing of particleboard require that we install special equipment in manufacturing facilities or that

we reformulate paint products Our Plumbing Products segment is subject to restrictions on lead

content in some of its products Compliance with such laws and regulations could significantly affect

product performance as well as our production costs We monitor applicable laws and regulations

relating to the protection of the environment and worker health and safety and incur ongoing expense

relating to compliance Compliance with the federal state and local regulations relating to the

discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment

and worker health and safety is not expected to result in material capital expenditures or to have

material adverse effect on our earnings or competitive position

We do not consider backlog orders to be material

At December 31 2009 we employed approximately 35400 people Satisfactory relations have

generally prevailed between us and our employees

Available Information

Our website is www.masco.com Our periodic reports and all amendments to those reports required to

be filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are

available free of charge through our website This Form 10-K is being posted on our website concurrently with

its filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission We will continue to post our periodic reports on

Form 10-0 and our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those documents to our website as

soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission Material contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Report on

Form 10-K

Item 1A Risk Factors

There are number of business risks and uncertainties that have affected and may continue to affect our

business These risks and uncertainties have negatively impacted our current results and could cause our

future results to differ from past performance or expected results including results described in statements

elsewhere in this Report that constitute forward-looking statements under the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 The effect on us of certain of these risk factors is discussed below under Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Additional risks

and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial also may adversely

impact our business financial condition and results of operations These risks and uncertainties include but

are not limited to the following which we consider to be most relevant to our specific business activities



significant portion of our business relies on home improvement and new home

construction activity levels both of which have experienced significant downturn

significant portion of our business relies on home improvement including repair and remodeling and

new home construction activity levels principally in North America and Europe The new home construction

market which is cyclical in nature has undergone significant downturn marked by declines in the demand

for new homes an oversupply of new and existing homes on the market and reduction in the availability of

financing for homebuyers The oversupply of existing homes held for sale has been exacerbated by growing

number of home mortgage foreclosures which has contributed to the downward pressure on home prices

Unlike most previous cyclical declines in new home construction this economic decline has also

adversely affected our home improvement businesses Low levels of consumer confidence and the down

ward pressure on home prices have made it much more difficult for homeowners to make additional

investments in their homes such as kitchen and bath remodeling projects Further disruptions in the credit

markets have limited the ability of consumers to finance home improvements

We believe that during the third and fourth quarters of 2009 there have been some signs of stabilization

in our markets and we continue to believe that the long-term outlook for the home improvement and new

home construction markets is favorable However we cannot predict the type timing or strength of

recovery in our markets Depressed activity levels in consumer spending for home improvements and new

home construction have adversely affected our results of operations and our financial position

Furthermore the economic turmoil has caused certain shifts in consumer preferences and purchasing

practices and has resulted in changes in the business models and strategies of our customers Such shifts

which may or may not be long-term have altered the nature and prices of products demanded by the end-

consumer and our customers If we do not timely and effectively respond to these changing consumer

preferences our relationships with our customers could be adversely affected the demand for our products

could be reduced and our market share could be negatively affected

prolonged economic downturn could reduce our financial resources and flexibility

The valuation assets on our balance sheet particularly goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible

assets is largely dependent upon the expectations for future perlormance of our businesses further

decline in the expectation of our future performance or continuation of the adverse conditions in the new

home construction markets may cause us to recognize non-cash impairment charges which are not

determinable at this time for certain long-lived assets including goodwill and could result in reduction in

our shareholders equity in the future Such reduction in our shareholders equity may limit our borrowing

capacity under our existing Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement

We rely on key customers and may encounter conflicts within and between our

distribution channels

The size and importance of individual customers to our businesses has increased as customers in our

major distribution channels have consolidated or exited the business Larger customers can make significant

changes in their volume of purchases and can otherwise significantly affect the prices we receive for our

products and services our costs of doing business with them and the terms and conditions on which we do

business Sales of our home improvement and building products to home center retailers are substantial In

2009 sales to our largest customer The Home Depot were $2.1 billion approximately 26 percent of our

consolidated net sales Lowes is our second largest customer In 2009 our sales to Lowes were less than

10 percent of our consolidated net sales Although homebuilders dealers and other retailers represent other

channels of distribution for our products and services the loss of substantial portion of our sales to The

Home Depot or the loss of our sales to Lowes would have material adverse effect on our business

As some of our customers expand their markets and their targeted customers conflicts between our

existing distribution channels have occurred and will continue to occur In addition we may undermine the



business relationships we have with customers who purchase our products through traditional wholesale

channels as we increase the amount of business we transact directly with our larger customers In addition

our large retail customers are increasingly requesting product exclusivity which may affect the products we
can offer to other customers

Our principal markets are highly competitive

The major geographic markets for our products and services are highly competitive and in recent years

competition has intensified significantly Competition is further intensified during economic downturns Home
center retailers are increasing their purchases of products directly from manufacturers particularly low-cost

suppliers in Asia for sale as private label and house brand merchandise Also home center retailers which have

historically concentrated their sales efforts on retail consumers and remodelers are increasingly turning their

marketing efforts directly toward professional contractors and installers We believe that competition in our

industries is based largely on price product and service quality brand reputation customer service and product

features and innovation Although the relative importance of such factors varies among customers and product

categories price is often primary factor

In addition to the challenges we have faced as result of the economic downturn in our markets our

ability to maintain our competitive positions in our markets and to grow our businesses depends to large

extent upon successfully maintaining our relationships with major customers implementing growth strategies

in our existing markets and entering new geographic markets capitalizing on and strengthening our brand

names managing our cost structure accommodating shorter life-cycles for our products and product

development and innovation

The cost and availability of materials and the performance of our supply chain affect

our operating results

It has been and likely will continue to be difficult for us to pass on to customers cost increases for

commodities or other materials that are major components of our products or services In addition we may
incur substantial costs as part of our strategy to hedge against price volatility of certain commodities we
purchase and we may make commitments to purchase supplies at prices that subsequently exceed their

market prices Delays in adjusting or in our inability to adjust selling prices may be due to factors such as our

existing arrangements with customers competitive considerations and customer resistance to price

increases Further when commodity prices decline we receive pressure from our customers to reduce

prices for our products and services Changes in energy costs and certain commodities not only impact our

production costs but also the cost to transport our products

We manufacture products in Asia and source products and components from third parties in Asia The
distances involved in these arrangements together with differences in business practices shipping and

delivery requirements the limited number of suppliers and laws and regulations have increased the difficulty

of managing our supply chain the complexity of our supply chain logistics and the potential for interruptions in

our production scheduling

We rely heavily or exclusively on outside suppliers for certain of our products or key components If there

is an interruption in these sources of supply we may experience difficulty or delay in substituting alternatives

and our business may be disrupted

International political monetary economic and social developments affect our business

Over 21 percent of our sales are derived outside of North America principally in Europe and are

transacted in currencies other than U.S dollars principally European euros and Great Britain pounds In

addition we manufacture products in Asia and source products and components from third parties in Asia

Our international business faces risks associated with changes in political monetary economic and social

environments labor conditions and practices the laws regulations and policies of foreign governments

cultural differences and differences in enforcement of contract and intellectual property rights U.S laws

affecting activities of U.S companies doing business abroad including tax laws and laws regulating various



business practices also impact our international business Our international operating results may be

influenced when compared to our North American results in part due to relative economic conditions in

the European markets and due to competitive pricing pressures on certain products The financial reporting

of our consolidated operating results is affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates which may

present challenges in comparing operating performance from period to period and in forecasting future

performance

We have financial commitments and investments in financial assets including assets

that are not readily marketable and Involve financial risk

We have maintained investments in available-for-sale securities including marketable and auction rate

securities and number of private equity funds although we are reducing such investments Since there is no

active trading market for investments in private equity funds they are for the most part illiquid These

investments by their nature can also have relatively higher degree of business risk including financial

leverage than other financial investments Future changes in market conditions the future performance of the

underlying investments or new information provided by private equity fund managers could affect the recorded

values of such investments or the amounts realized upon liquidation In addition we have commitments that

require us to contribute additional capital to these private equity funds upon receipt of capital call from the

private equity fund The decline in economic conditions in 2008 resulted in the decline in the value of our

investments in debt and equity securities including assets held in our pension plans At December 31 2009

the fair value of such investments and assets remains at reduced levels

Claims and litigation could be costly

We are from time to time involved in various claims litigation matters and regulatory proceedings that

arise in the ordinary course of our business and which could have material adverse effect on us These

matters may include contract disputes personal injury claims warranty disputes environmental claims or

proceedings other tort claims employment and tax matters and other proceedings and litigation including

class actions

In recent years we have experienced class action lawsuits predicated upon claims for antitrust

violations product liability and wage and hour issues We have generally denied liability and have vigorously

defended these cases Due to their scope and complexity however such lawsuits are particularly costly to

resolve and significant exposures have been alleged

We are subject to product safety regulations recalls and direct claims for product liability that can result

in significant liability and regardless of the ultimate outcome can be costly to defend Also we increasingly

rely on other manufacturers to provide us with products or components for products that we sell As result of

the difficulty of controlling the quality of products or components sourced from other manufacturers we are

exposed to risks relating to the quality of such products and to limitations on our recourse against such

suppliers

Increasingly homebuilders including our customers are subject to construction defect and home

warranty claims in the ordinary course of their business Our contractual arrangements with these customers

typically include the agreement to indemnify them against liability
for the performance of our products or

services or the performance of other products that we install These claims often asserted several years after

completion of construction frequently result in lawsuits against the homebuilders and many of their

subcontractors including us and require us to incur defense costs even when our products or services

are not the principal basis for the claims

Although we intend to defend all claims and litigation matters vigorously given the inherently unpre

dictable nature of claims and litigation we cannot predict with certainty the outcome or effect of any claim or

litigation matter and there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of any such matter

We maintain insurance against some but not all of these risks of loss resulting from claims and litigation

We may elect not to obtain insurance if we believe the cost of available insurance is excessive relative to the
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risks presented The levels of insurance we maintain may not be adequate to fully cover any and all losses or

liabilities If any significant accident judgment claim or other event is not fully insured or indemnified against it

could have material adverse impact on our business financial condition and results of operations

See Note to the consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Report for additional

information about litigation involving our businesses

Government and industry responses to environmental and health and safety concerns
could impact our capital expenditures and operating results

Government regulations pertaining to health and safety including protection of employees as well as

consumers and environmental concerns continue to emerge domestically as well as internationally In

addition to having to comply with current requirements including requirements that do not become effective

until future date even more stringent requirements could be imposed on our industries in the future

Compliance with these regulations such as the restrictions on lead content in plumbing products and on

volatile organic compounds and formaldehyde emissions that are applicable to certain of our businesses

may require us to alter our manufacturing and installation processes and our sourcing Such actions could

adversely impact our operating results and our ability to effectively and timely meet such regulations could

adversely impact our competitive position

The long-term performance of our businesses relies on our ability to attract develop
and retain talented management

To be successful we must attract develop and retain highly qualified and talented personnel in

management sales marketing and product design and innovation and as we consider entering new
international markets skilled personnel familiar with these markets We compete with multinational firms for

these employees and we invest significant resources in recruiting developing motivating and retaining them

The failure to attract develop motivate and retain key employees could negatively affect our competitive

position and our operating results

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

The table below lists our principal North American properties for segments other than Installation and

Other Services

Warehouse and

Business Segment Manufacturing Distribution

Cabinets and Related Products 16 17

Plumbing Products 25

Decorative Architectural Products 11

Other Specialty Products 13

Totals 62 40

Most of our North American facilities range in size from single warehouse buildings of approximately

10000 square feet to complex manufacturing facilities that exceed 1000000 square feet We own most of

our North American manufacturing facilities none of which are subject to significant encumbrances

substantial number of our warehouse and distribution facilities are leased

In addition our Installation and Other Services segment operates over 180 installation branch locations

and over 70 distribution centers in the United States most of which are leased

The table below lists our principal properties outside of North America

Warehouse and

Business Segment Manufacturing Distribution

Cabinets arid Related Products 11

Plumbing Products 15 23

Decorative Architectural Products

Other Specialty Products

Totals 28 36

Most of these international facilities are located in China Denmark Germany and the United Kingdom

We generally own our international manufacturing facilities none of which are subject to significant encum

brances substantial number of our warehouse and distribution facilities are leased

Our corporate headquarters are located in Taylor Michigan and are owned by us We own an additional

building near our corporate headquarters that is used by our corporate research and development

department

Each of our operating divisions assesses the manufacturing distribution and other facilities needed to

meet its operating requirements Our buildings machinery and equipment have been generally well main

tained and are in good operating condition In general our facilities have sufficient capacity and are adequate

for our production arid distribution requirements

Item Legal Proceedings

Information regarding legal proceedings involving us is set forth in Note to our consolidated financial

statements included in Item of this Report

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable
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Supplementary Item Executive Officers of the Registrant

Pursuant to Instruction to Item 401b of Regulation S-K

Executive

Officer

Name Position Age Since

Timothy Wadhams President and Chief Executive Officer 61 2001

Donald DeMarie Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 47 2007

John Sznewajs Vice President Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer 42 2005

William Anderson Vice President Controller 62 2008

Charles Greenwood Vice President Human Resources 62 2008

Gregory Wiftrock Vice President General Counsel and Secretary 63 2009

Executive officers are elected annually by our Board of Directors Each of the above executive officers

has been employed by us for at least the past five years Mr DeMarie was elected Executive Vice President in

July 2007 and became Chief Operating Officer in December 2007 He had previously served as Group
President of our Installation and Other Services segment since 2003 He served as President and Chief

Executive Officer of Masco Contractor Services and in other managerial roles since 1995 Mr Sznewajs was
elected to his current position in July 2007 He had previously served as Vice President and Treasurer since

2005 and Vice President Business Development since 2003 and before that time served in various

capacities in the Business Development Department from 1996 to 2003 Mr Anderson has served as

our Vice President Controller since 2007 From 2005 to 2007 he served as Vice President-Controller

Corporate Accounting From 2001 to 2004 Mr Anderson served as Group Vice President Mr Greenwood

has served as Vice President Human Resources of the Company since July 2007 Prior to 2007
Mr Greenwood was the Companys Director of Employee Relations since 1992 Mr Wittrock was elected

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary in 2009 From May2009 to November2009 Mr Wittrock was
Assistant General Counsel and Director Operations of the Legal Department Prior to May 2009
Mr Wittrock served as the Companys Assistant General Counsel for over 20 years
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The New York Stock Exchange is the principal market on which our common stock is traded The

following table indicates the high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported by the New York

Stock Exchange and the cash dividends declared per common share for the periods indicated

Market Price
Dividends

Quarter High Low Declared

2009

Fourth $14.89 $11.44 $075

Third 15.50 8.15 .075

Second 11 .46 6.50 .075

First 12.04 3.64 .075

Total .30

2008

Fourth $18.04 6.82 $.235

Third 22.00 13.50 .235

Second 21.14 15.16 .23

First 23.50 17.78 .23

Total .93

On February 10 2010 there were approximately 5700 holders of record of the Companys common

stock

We expect that our practice of paying quarterly dividends on our common stock will continue although

the payment of future dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our

earnings capital requirements financial condition and other factors In 2009 we reduced the quarterly

dividend from $.235 per common share to its current level of $075 per common share
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Performance Graph

The table below sets forth line graph comparing the cumulative total shareholder return on our

common stock with the cumulative total return of the Standard Poors 500 Composite Stock Index

SP 500 Index ii The Standard Poors Industrials Index SP Industrials Index and iii the Standard

Poors Consumer Durables Apparel Index SP Consumer Durables Apparel Index from December 31
2004 through December 31 2009 when the closing price of our common stock was $13.81

assumes investments of $100 on December31 2004 in our common stock and in each of these

and the reinvestment of dividends

The table below sets forth the value as of December 31 for each of the years indicated of $100

investment made on December 31 2004 in each of our common stock the SP 500 Index the SP
Industrials Index and the SP Consumer Durables Apparel Index and the reinvestment of dividends

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Masco 84.78 86.23 65.06 $36.29 46.53

SP 500 Index $104.83 $121.20 $127.85 $81.12 $102.15

SP Industrials Index $102.24 $115.70 $129.56 $78.51 94.37

SP Consumer Durables Apparel Index $101.83 $108.11 86.05 $57.16 77.91

In July 2007 our Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to 50 million shares of our common
stock in open-market transactions or otherwise At December 31 2009 we had remaining authorization to

repurchase up to 30 million shares During 2009 we repurchased and retired two million shares of our

common stock for cash aggregating $1 million to offset the dilutive impact of the 2009 grant of two million

shares of long-term stock awards

PERFORMANCE GRAPH
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Item Selected Financial Data

Dollars in Millions Except Per Common Share Data

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net Sales $7792 $9484 $11413 $12390 $12154

Operating profit 23456 55 90 1061 1115 1610

Loss income from continuing operations

234567 140 366 502 438 900

Per share of common stock

Loss income from continuing operations

Basic .41 1.06 1.33 1.09 2.08

Diluted .41 1.06 1.32 1.08 2.06

Dividends declared .30 .93 .92 .88 .80

Dividends paid .46 .925 .91 .86 .78

At December 31

Total assets $9175 $9483 $10907 $12325 $12559

Long-term debt 3604 3915 3966 3533 3915

Shareholders equity 2817 2981 4142 4579 4957

Amounts exclude discontinued operations

The year 2009 includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill aggregating $180 million after tax

$262 million pre-tax

The year 2008 includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets aggre

gating $445 million after tax $467 million pre-tax

The year 2007 includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets aggre

gating $100 million after tax $1 19 million pre-tax

The year 2006 includes non-cash impairment charges for goodwill aggregating $317 million after tax

$317 million pre-tax

Loss income from continuing operations excludes income from noncontrolling interest of $38 million

$39 million $37 million $27 million and $22 million respectively in 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005

Loss income from continuing operations and shareholders equity have been restated for the adoption of

new accounting guidance regarding the classification of noncontrolling interest and the accounting for the

Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Notes

16



Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

The financial and business analysis below provides information which we believe is relevant to an

assessment and understanding of our consolidated financial position results of operations and cash flows

This financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements

and related notes

The following discussion and certain other sections of this Report contain statements reflecting our views

about our future performance and constitute forward-looking statements under the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These views involve risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and

accordingly our actual results may differ materially from the results discussed in such forward-looking

statements Readers should consider that various factors including those discussed in Item 1A Risk

Factors of this Report the Executive Level Overview Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and

Outlook for the Company sections may affect our performance We undertake no obligation to update

publicly any forward-looking statements as result of new information future events or otherwise

Executive Level Overview

We manufacture distribute and install home improvement and building products These products are

sold to the home improvement and new home construction markets through mass merchandisers hardware

stores home centers homebuilders distributors and other outlets for consumers and contractors

During 2009 we experienced decline in our markets including decline in new home construction of

over 38 percent from 2008 as well as decline in consumer spending for home improvement products Net

sales decreased 18 percent in 2009 from 2008 and operating profit as adjusted to exclude impairment

charges for goodwill and other intangible assets general corporate expense net charge for defined-benefit

plan curtailment charge for litigation settlements accelerated stock compensation expense and loss gain

on corporate fixed assets net see Footnote of the consolidated financial statements declined to

6.2 percent of sales in 2009 from 7.5 percent of sales in 2008

Factors that affect our results of operations include the levels of home improvement activity and new

home construction principally in North America and Europe the importance of our relationships with key

customers including The Home Depot which represented approximately 26 percent of net sales in 2009
our ability to maintain our leadership positions in our U.S and global markets in the face of increasing

competition and our ability to effectively manage our overall cost structure including the cost and availability

of materials Our International businesses face political monetary economic and other risks that vary from

country to country as well as fluctuations in currency exchange rates Further we have financial commit

ments and investments in financial assets that are not readily marketable and that involve financial risk In

addition litigation could be costly These and other factors are discussed in more detail in Item 1A Risk

Factors of this Report

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our

consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP The preparation of these financial statements

requires us to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods We regularly review our estimates

and assumptions which are based upon historical experience as well as current economic conditions and

various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the

basis for making judgments about the carrying values of certain assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions
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We believe thai the following critical accounting policies are affected by significant judgments and

estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements

Revenue Recognition and Receivables

We recognize revenue as title to products and risk of loss is transferred to customers or when services

are rendered We record revenue for unbilled services perlormed based upon estimates of labor incurred in

the Installation and Other Services segment such amounts are recorded in Receivables We record

estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs and incentive offerings including special pricing

and co-operative advertising arrangements promotions and other volume-based incentives We maintain

allowances for doubtful accounts receivable for estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to

make required payments In addition we monitor our customer receivable balances and the credit worthiness

of our customers on an on-going basis During downturns in our markets declines in the financial condition

and creditworthiness of customers impact the credit risk of the receivables involved and we have incurred

additional bad debt expense related to customer defaults Our bad debt expense was $34 million $41 million

and $29 million for the year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

In North America we manufacture products principally windows doors and cabinets and provide

installation of insulation and other products and services to homebuilders Our bad debt expense related to

homebuilders was $22 million $28 million and $23 million for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

Inventories

We record inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value with expense estimates made for

obsolescence or unsaleable inventory equal to the difference between the recorded cost of inventories and

their estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions On an

on-going basis we monitor these estimates and record adjustments for differences between estimates and

actual experience Historically actual results have not significantly deviated from those determined using

these estimates

Financial Investments

On January 2008 we adopted accounting guidance that defines fair value establishes framework

for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements for our financial investments

and liabilities This guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date Further it

defines fair value hierarchy for measurement and disclosure of the fair value for financial instruments as

follows Level inputs as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level inputs as

observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities or

other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by market data and Level inputs as unobservable

inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are financial instruments whose value is

determined using pricing models or instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant

management judgment or estimation

We have maintained investments in available-for-sale securities and number of private equity funds

which aggregated $1 10 million and $123 million respectively at December31 2009 We record investments

in available-for-sale securities at fair value and unrealized gains or losses that are deemed to be temporary

are recognized net of tax effect through shareholders equity as component of other comprehensive

income in our consolidated balance sheet We estimated the fair value of investments in available-for-sale

securities using primarily Level inputs We estimated the fair value of our investment in Asahi Tec preferred

stock using discounted cash flow model Level input If we changed the discount rate used in the fair

value estimate by 100 basis points the value of the Asahi Tec preferred stock would change by approximately

three percent
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In the past we have invested excess cash in auction rate securities Auction rate securities are

investment securities that have interest rates which are reset every 28 or 35 days At December 31
2009 our investment in auction rate securities was $22 million we have not increased our investment in

auction rate securities since 2007 The fair value of auction rate securities is estimated based on discounted

cash flow model Level input If we changed the discount rate used in the fair value estimate by 75 basis

points the value of the auction rate securities would change by approximately $1 million

We carry our investments in private equity funds at cost It is not practicable for us to estimate fair value

for private equity funds because there are no quoted market prices and sufficient information is not readily

available for us to utilize valuation model to determine the fair value for each fund These investments are

evaluated on non-recurring basis for potential other-than-temporary impairment when impairment

indicators are present or when an event or change in circumstances has occurred that may have

significant adverse effect on the fair value of the investment Due to the significant unobservable inputs the

fair value measurements used to evaluate impairment are Level input

Impairment indicators we consider include the following whether there has been significant deteri

oration in earnings performance asset quality or business prospects significant adverse change in the

regulatory economic or technological environment significant adverse change in the general market

condition or geographic area in which the investment operates industry and sector performance current

equity and credit market conditions and any bona fide offers to purchase the investment for less than the

carrying value We also consider specific adverse conditions related to the financial health of and business

outlook for the fund including industry and sector performance The significant assumptions utilized in

analyzing fund for potential other-than-temporary impairment include current economic conditions market

analysis for specific funds and performance indicators in the automotive and transportation residential and

commercial construction bio-technology health care and information technology sectors in which the

applicable funds investments operate

At December 31 2009 we have investments in 17 venture capital funds with an aggregate carrying

value of $28 million The venture capital funds invest in start-up or smaller early-stage established busi

nesses principally in the information technology bio-technology and health care sectors At December 31
2009 we also have investments in 28 buyout funds with an aggregate carrying value of $95 million The

buyout funds invest in later-stage established businesses and other than the Heartland Industrial Partners

Fund which is primarily in the automotive and transportation sector no buyout fund has concentration in

particular sector

Since there is no active trading market for these investments they are for the most part illiquid These

investments by their nature can also have relatively higher degree of business risk including financial

leverage than other financial investments The timing of distributions from the funds which depends on

particular events related to the underlying investments as well as the funds schedules for making distri

butions and their needs for cash can be difficult to predict As result the amount of income we record from

these investments can vary substantially from quarter to quarter Future changes in market conditions the

future performance of the underlying investments or new information provided by private equity fund

managers could affect the recorded values of these investments and the amounts realized upon liquidation

We record an impairment charge to earnings when an investment has experienced decline in fair value

that is deemed to be other-than-temporary During 2009 we recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment

charges of $10 million related to our investment in five private equity funds

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We record the excess of purchase cost over the fair value of net tangible assets of acquired companies

as goodwill or other identifiable intangible assets In the fourth quarter of each year or as events occur or

circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its

carrying amount we complete the impairment testing of goodwill utilizing discounted cash flow method We
selected the discounted cash flow methodology as we believe that it is comparable to what would be used by

other market participants We have defined our reporting units and completed the impairment testing of
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goodwill at the operating segment level as defined by accounting guidance Our operating segments are

reporting units that engage in business activities for which discrete financial information including five-year

forecasts are available

Determining market values using discounted cash flow method requires us to make significant

estimates and assumptions including long-term projections of cash flows market conditions and appro

priate discount rates Our judgments are based upon historical experience current market trends consul

tations with external valuation specialists and other information While we believe that the estimates and

assumptions underlying the valuation methodology are reasonable different estimates and assumptions

could result in different outcomes In estimating future cash flows we rely on internally generated five-year

forecasts for sales and operating profits including capital expenditures and generally one to three percent

long-term assumed annual growth rate of cash flows for periods after the five-year forecast We generally

develop these forecasts based upon among other things recent sales data for existing products planned

timing of new product launches estimated housing starts and repair and remodeling estimates for existing

homes

In 2009 for our reporting units that primarily sell to the new home construction market including those in

the Installation and Other Services segment we utilized estimated housing starts from independent industry

sources growing from current levels to 1.6 million units in 2014 terminal growth year and operating profit

margins improving to approximate historical margins for those business units by 2014 terminal growth year

We generally utilize our weighted average cost of capital discount rate of approximately nine percent to

discount the estimated cash flows However in 2009 and 2008 due to market conditions we increased the

discount rate for most of our reporting units based upon review of the current risks impacting our

businesses

In the fourth quarter of 2009 we estimated that future discounted cash flows projected for most of our

reporting units were greater than the carrying values Any increases in estimated discounted cash flows

would have no effect on the reported value of goodwill

If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its fair value we measure the possible goodwill

impairment based upon an allocation of the estimate of fair value of the reporting unit to all of the underlying

assets and liabilities of the reporting unit including any previously unrecognized intangible assets Step Two

Analysis The excess of the fair value of reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities

is the implied fair value of goodwill An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that reporting units

recorded goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill

In 2009 we recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for goodwill aggregating $262 million

$180 million after tax The pre-tax impairment charge of $39 million relates to our European shower

enclosure manufacturer and reflects decline in the reporting units anticipated long-term outlook The pre

tax impairment charge of $223 million relates to our manufacturer of staple gun tackers and other fastening

tools and reflects decline in the reporting units anticipated long-term outlook

five percent decrease in the estimated fair value of our reporting units at December 31 2009 would

have resulted in Step Two Analysis and probable goodwill impairment for one reporting unit in the Installation

and Other Services segment ten percent decrease in the estimated fair value of our reporting units at

December 31 2009 would have resulted in Step Two Analysis and probable goodwill impairment for one

reporting unit in the Cabinets and Related Products segment one reporting unit in the Installation and Other

Services segment and one reporting unit in the Other Specialty Products segment

We review our other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or as

events occur or circumstances change that indicate the assets may be impaired without regard to the

reporting unit We consider the implications of both external e.g market growth competition and local

economic conditions and internal e.g product sales and expected product growth factors and their

potential impact on cash flows related to the intangible asset in both the near- and long-term

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives We evaluate the remaining useful lives of amortizable identifiable intangible assets at each
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reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant revision to the remaining periods

of amortization

Stock-Based Compensation

Our 2005 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan the 2005 Plan provides for the issuance of stock-based

incentives in various forms to employees and non-employee Directors At December 31 2009 outstanding

stock-based incentives were in the form of long-term stock awards stock options phantom stock awards

and stock appreciation rights

Long-Term Stock Awards

We grant long-term stock awards to key employees and non-employee Directors and do not cause net

share dilution inasmuch as we continue the practice of repurchasing and retiring an equal number of shares

on the open market We measure compensation expense for stock awards at the market price of our

common stock at the grant date There was $126 million nine million common shares of total unrecognized

compensation expense related to unvested stock awards at December 31 2009 which was included as

reduction of common stock and paid-in capital Effective January 2006 we recognize this expense ratably

over the shorter of the vesting period of the stock awards typically to 10 years except for stock awards held

by grantees age 66 or older which vest over five years or the length of time until the grantee becomes

retirement-eligible at age 65 For stock awards granted prior to January 2006 we recognize this expense

over the vesting period of the stock awards typically 10 years or for executive grantees that are or will

become retirement-eligible during the vesting period we recognize the expense over five years or imme

diately upon grantees retirement Pre-tax compensation expense for the annual vesting of long-term stock

awards was $37 million for 2009

Stock Options

We grant stock options to key employees and non-employee Directors The exercise price equals the

market price of our common stock at the grant date These options generally become exercisable vest

ratably over five years beginning on the first anniversary from the date of grant and expire no later than

10 years after the grant date

We measure compensation expense for stock options using Black-Scholes option pricing model For

stock options granted subsequent to January 2006 we recognize this compensation expense ratably over

the shorter of the vesting period of the stock options typically five years or the length of time until the grantee

becomes retirement-eligible at age 65 The expense for unvested stock options at January 2006 is based

upon the grant date fair value of those options as calculated using Black-Scholes option pricing model For

stock options granted prior to January 2006 we recognize this compensation expense ratably over the

vesting period of the stock options typically five years Pre-tax compensation expense for stock options was

$25 million for 2009

We estimated the fair value of stock options at the grant date using Black-Scholes option pricing model

with the following assumptions for 2009 risk-free interest rate 2.60% dividend yield 3.70% volatility

factor 39.18% and expected option life years For expense calculation purposes the weighted

average grant-date fair value of option shares granted in 2009 was $2.28 per option share

If we increased our assumptions for the risk-free interest rate and the volatility factor by 50 percent the

expense related to the fair value of stock options granted in 2009 would increase by 53 percent If we

decreased our assumptions for the risk-free interest rate and the volatility factor by 50 percent the expense

related to the fair value of stock options granted in 2009 would decrease by 61 percent

Employee Retirement Plans

Accounting for defined-benefit pension plans involves estimating the cost of benefits to be provided in

the future based upon vested years of service and attributing those costs over the time period each
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employee works We develop our pension costs and obligations from actuarial valuations Inherent in these

valuations are key assumptions regarding inflation expected return on plan assets mortality rates com

pensation increases and discount rates for obligations and expenses We consider current market condi

tions including changes in interest rates in selecting these assumptions Changes in assumptions used

could result in changes to reported pension costs and obligations within our consolidated financial

statements

In March 2009 based on managements recommendation the Board of Directors approved plan to

freeze all future benefit accruals under substantially all of our domestic qualified and non-qualified defined-

benefit pension plans The freeze was effective January 2010 As result of this action the liabilities for the

plans impacted by the freeze were remeasured and we recognized curtailment charge of $8 million in the

first quarter of 2009

In December 2009 we decreased our discount rate for obligations to an average of 5.80 percent from

6.10 percent The discount rate for obligations was based upon the expected duration of each defined-

benefit pension plans liabilities matched to the December 31 2009 Citigroup Pension Discount Curve The

discount rates we use for our defined-benefit pension plans ranged from 2.60 percent to 6.25 percent with

the most significant portion of the liabilities having discount rate for obligations of 5.60 percent or higher The

assumed asset return was primarily 8.00 percent reflecting the expected long-term return on plan assets

Our net underfunded amount for our qualified defined-benefit pension plans the difference between the

projected benefit obligation and plan assets decreased to $332 million at December 31 2009 from

$344 million at December 31 2008 primarily due to the decision to freeze all future benefit accruals in

accordance with accounting guidance the underfunded amount has been recognized on our consolidated

balance sheets at December 31 2009 and 2008 Qualified domestic pension plan assets in 2009 had net

gain of approximately 22 percent compared to average gains of 21 percent for the corporate funds universe

within the Independent Consultant Cooperative

Our projected benefit obligation for our unfunded non-qualified defined-benefit pension plans was

$152 million at December 31 2009 compared with $147 million at December 31 2008 such unfunded

amount has been recognized on our consolidated balance sheets at December 31 2009 and 2008

We expect pension expense for our qualified defined-benefit pension plans to be $33 million in 2010

compared with $40 million in 2009 If we assumed that the future return on plan assets was one-half percent

lower than the assumed asset return and the discount rate decreased by 50 basis points the 2010 pension

expense would increase by $4 million We expect pension expense for our non-qualified defined-benefit

pension plans to be $8 million in 2010 compared with $15 million in 2009

We have several funding options and credits available and we anticipate that we will be required to

contribute approximately $20 million to $25 million in 2010 to our qualified defined-benefit plans

Income Taxes

We have considered potential sources of future taxable income in determining the amount of valuation

allowance against our deferred tax assets Of the $582 million of deferred tax assets recorded at Decem

ber 31 2009 net of the valuation allowance $432 million is anticipated to be realized through the future

reversal of existing taxable temporary differences recorded as deferred tax liability and $150 million is

anticipated to be realized through future gains from investments and other identified tax-planning strategies

including the potential sale of certain operating assets and through capital gains in the carryback period

The continued utilization of our tax-planning strategies is largely dependent upon the future performance

of certain businesses significant decline in the expectation of future performance may impact our valuation

allowance assessment

Should we determine that we would not be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future an

adjustment to the valuation allowance would be recorded in the period such determination is made The need
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to maintain valuation allowance against deferred tax assets may cause greater volatility in our effective tax

rate

Effective January 2007 the FASB issued new guidance which allows the recognition of only those

income tax benefits that have greater than 50 percent likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the

taxing authorities This new guidance establishes lower threshold for recognizing reserves for income tax

contingencies on uncertain tax positions referred to as unrecognized tax benefits Therefore we believe

that there is greater potential for volatility in our effective tax rate because this lower threshold allows

changes in the income tax environment and the inherent complexities of income tax law in substantial

number of jurisdictions to affect our unrecognized tax benefits computation to greater degree than with prior

guidance

While we believe we have adequately provided for our uncertain tax positions amounts asserted by

taxing authorities could vary from our accrued
liability

for unrecognized tax benefits Accordingly additional

provisions for tax-related matters including interest and penalties could be recorded in income tax expense
in the period revised estimates are made or the underlying matters are settled or otherwise resolved

Other Commitments and Contingencies

Certain of our products and product finishes and services are covered by warranty to be free from

defects in material and workmanship for periods ranging from one year to the life of the product At the time of

sale we accrue warranty liability for estimated costs to provide products parts or services to repair or

replace products in satisfaction of warranty obligations Our estimate of costs to service our warranty

obligations is based upon historical experience and expectations of future conditions To the extent that we
experience any changes in warranty claim activity or costs associated with servicing those claims our

warranty liability is adjusted accordingly

The majority of our business is at the consumer retail level through home centers and major retailers

consumer may return product to retail outlet that is warranty return However certain retail outlets do not

distinguish between warranty and other types of returns when they claim return deduction from us Our

revenue recognition policy takes into account this type of return when recognizing revenue and we record

deductions at the time of sale

We are subject to lawsuits and pending or asserted claims with respect to matters generally arising in the

ordinary course of business Liabilities and costs associated with these matters require estimates and

judgments based upon our professional knowledge and experience and that of our legal counsel When
estimates of our exposure for lawsuits and pending or asserted claims meet the criteria for recognition under

accounting guidance amounts are recorded as charges to earnings The ultimate resolution of these

exposures may differ due to subsequent developments See Note to our consolidated financial statements

for information regarding certain of our legal proceedings

Corporate Development Strategy

Our current business strategy includes the rationalization of our business units including consolidations
and increasing synergies among our business units Going forward we expect to maintain balanced growth

strategy with emphasis on cash flow organic growth with fewer acquisitions and growth through new product

development start-up businesses related to home energy services and greenfield locations related to certain

Installation and Other Services businesses As part of our strategic planning we continue to review all of our
businesses to determine which businesses may not be core to our long-term growth strategy

During 2009 we sold two European business units in the Plumbing Products segment that were not core
to our long-term growth strategy We recognized net pre-tax loss of $43 million in 2009 related to these

transactions

We accounted for the business units which were sold in 2009 2008 and 2007 as discontinued

operations See Note to the consolidated financial statements for more information
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During 2009 we acquired small business in the Plumbing Products segment this business allows us to

expand into developing market and had annual sales of $11 million for net purchase price of $6 million in

cash During 2008 we acquired relatively small countertop business Cabinet and Related Products

segment This business which allows us to expand products and services we offer to our customers had

annual sales of over $40 million During 2007 we acquired several relatively small installation service

businesses Installation and Other Services segment as well as Erickson Construction Company and

Guy Evans Inc Installation and Other Services segment

The results of these acquisitions are included in the consolidated financial statements from the

respective dates of acquisition

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically we have largely funded our growth through cash provided by combination of our

operations long-term bank debt and the issuance of notes in the financial markets and by the issuance

of our common stock including issuances for certain mergers and acquisitions

Maintaining high levels of liquidity and focusing on cash generation are among our financial strategies

such strategies have led to cash of over $1 .4 billion at December31 2009 Our total debt as percent of total

capitalization was 58 percent and 57 percent at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

At our request in late April 2009 our Bank Group modified the terms of our Five-Year Revolving Credit

Agreement which expires in February 2011 After reviewing our anticipated liquidity position we requested

that the maximum amount we could borrow under this facility be reduced to $1 .25 billion from $2.0 billion in

addition the debt to total capitalization ratio requirement has been increased from 60 percent to 65 percent

The debt to total capitalization ratio and the minimum net worth covenants have also been amended to allow

the add-back if incurred of up to the first $500 million of certain non-cash charges including goodwill and

other intangible asset impairment charges that would negatively impact shareholders equity We incurred

approximately $2 million of fees and expenses associated with the Amendment If the facility is utilized we will

incur higher borrowing costs as result of the Amendment

The Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement contains requirement for maintaining certain

level of net worth at 31 2009 our net worth exceeded such requirement by $1.0 billion Under the

terms of the Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement any outstanding Letters of Credit reduce our

borrowing capacity At December 31 2009 we had $83 million of unused Letters of Credit The Amended

Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement also contains limitations on additional borrowings related to the debt

to total capitalization requirements at December 31 2009 we had additional borrowing capacity subject to

availability of up to $1 .2 billion In addition at December 31 2009 we could absorb reduction to

shareholders equity of approximately $867 million and remain in compliance with the debt to total

capitalization covenant

In order to borrow under the Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement there must not be any

defaults in our covenants in the credit agreement i.e in addition to the two financial covenants principally

limitations on subsidiary debt negative pledge restrictions legal compliance requirements and maintenance

of insurance and our representations and warranties in the credit agreement must be true in all material

respects on the date of borrowing i.e principally no material adverse change or litigation likely to result in

material adverse change in each case since December 31 2008 no material ERISA or environmental non

compliance and no material tax deficiency We were in compliance with all debt covenants at December31

2009 and 2008

We had cash and cash investments of over $1 .4 billion at December 31 2009 principally as result of

strong cash flows from operations

Our cash and cash investments consist of overnight interest bearing money market demand and time

deposit accounts money market mutual funds containing government securities and treasury obligations

While we attempt to diversify these investments in prudent manner to minimize risk it is possible that future

changes in the financial markets could affect the security or availability of these investments
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We have maintained investments in available-for-sale and marketable securities and number of private

equity funds principally as part of our tax planning strategies as any gains enhance the utilization of any
current and future capital tax losses We determined that the longer maturity of private equity funds would be

advantageous and complement our investment in more liquid available-for-sale and marketable securities to

balance risk Since we have significantly reduced our capital tax losses in part by generating capital gains from

investments and other sources we have and will continue to reduce our investments in long-term financial

assets

During 2009 we announced the reduction of our quarterly dividend to $.075 per common share from

$.235 per common share

We have scheduled maturity of our long-term indebtedness in March 2010 when $300 million of our

Floating Rate Notes become due Subsequent to this maturity we have no scheduled maturities until July
2012 when our $850 million of 5.875% fixed rate notes become due

Our working capital ratio was .9 to and 2.1 to at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

We have entered into foreign currency forward contracts to manage exposure to currency fluctuations

primarily related to the European euro and the U.S dollar

Cash Flows

Significant sources and uses of cash in the past three years are summarized as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Net cash from operating activities 705 797 1270

Proceeds from disposition of

Businesses net of cash disposed 179 45

Property and equipment 23 45

Proceeds from financial investments net 11 58 108

Proceeds from settlement of swaps 16

Issuance of Company common stock 60

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 19

Cash dividends paid 166 336 347
Capital expenditures 125 200 248
Purchase of Company common stock 11 160 857
Decrease in debt net 11 133 881
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest 16 21 14
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 21 203
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash investments 46 47

Other net 27 31 80
Cash increase decrease $385 106 $1 036

Our cash and cash investments increased $385 million to $1 413 million at December 31 2009 from

$1028 million at December 31 2008

Net cash provided by operations of $705 million consisted primarily of net loss adjusted for non-cash

and certain other items including depreciation and amortization expense of $254 million net loss on

disposition of businesses of $40 million $262 million charge for the impairment of goodwill $10 million

charge for the impairment of financial investments and other non-cash items including stock-based

compensation expense amortization expense related to in-store displays and interest expense on the Zero

Coupon Convertible Senior Notes as well as net decrease in working capital of $235 million
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We continue to emphasize balance sheet management including working capital management and

cash flow generation Days sales in accounts receivable were 48 days at December 31 2009 compared with

50 days at December 31 2008 and days sales in inventories were 48 days at both December 31 2009 and

2008 Accounts payable days were 47 days at December 31 2009 and 43 days at December 31 2008

Working capital defined as accounts receivable and inventories less accounts payable as percent of sales

was 14.7 percent at both December 31 2009 and 2008

Net cash used for financing activities was $197 million and included cash outflows of $166 million for

cash dividends paid $1 million for the net payment of debt and $1 million for the acquisition of our common

stock to offset the dilutive impact of long-term stock awards granted in 2009

At December 31 2009 we had remaining Board of Directors authorization to repurchase up to an

additional 30 million shares of our common stock in open-market transactions or otherwise We believe that

our present cash balance and cash flows from operations are sufficient to fund our near-term working capital

and other investment needs We believe that our longer-term working capital and other general corporate

requirements will be satisfied through cash flows from operations and to the extent necessary from bank

borrowings and future financial market activities Consistent with past practice we anticipate repurchasing

shares in 2010 to offset any dilution from long-term stock awards granted or stock options exercised as part

of our compensation programs

Net cash used for investing activities was $1 18 million and included $125 million for capital expenditures

and $8 million for acquisitions Cash provided by investing activities included primarily $31 million of net

proceeds from the disposition of businesses and property and equipment and $1 million from the net sale of

financial investments

We invest in automating our manufacturing operations to increase our productivity to improve customer

service and to support new product innovation Capital expenditures for 2009 were $125 million compared

with $200 million for 2008 and $248 million for 2007 for 2010 capital expenditures excluding any potential

2010 acquisitions are expected to approximate $190 million Depreciation and amortization expense for

2009 totaled $254 million compared with $238 million for 2008 and $248 million for 2007 for 2010

depreciation and amortization expense excluding any potential 2010 acquisitions is expected to approx

imate $240 million Amortization expense totaled $17 million $17 million and $20 million in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

Costs of environmental responsibilities and compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations

have not had nor in our opinion are they expected to have material effect on our capital expenditures

financial position or results of operations

Consolidated Results of Operations

We report our financial results in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP in

the United States However we believe that certain non-GAAP performance measures and ratios used in

managing the business may provide users of this financial information with additional meaningful compar

isons between current results and results in prior periods Non-GAAP performance measures and ratios

should be viewed in addition to and not as an alternative for our reported results
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Sales and Operations

Net sales for 2009 were $7.8 billion representing decrease of 18 percent from 2008 Excluding results

from acquisitions and the effect of currency translation net sales decreased 16 percent compared with 2008
The following table reconciles reported net sales to net sales excluding acquisitions and the effect of currency
translation in millions

Twelve Months
Ended December 31

2009 2008

Net sales as reported $7792 $9484

Acquisitions

Net sales excluding acquisitions 7783 9484

Currency translation 151

Net sales excluding acquisitions and the effect of currency $7934 $9484

Net sales for 2009 were adversely affected by declines in the new home construction market which

reduced sales volume by approximately nine percent compared to 2008 Economic conditions remain

difficult in the new home construction market as full-year 2009 housing starts have declined over 38 percent

to 554000 from 2008 Net sales for 2009 were also negatively affected by declines in consumer spending for

home improvement products which contributed to lower sales volume reducing net sales by approximately
six percent compared to 2008 Such declines were partially offset by net selling price increases for certain

products which increased sales by approximately one percent compared to 2008

Net sales volume of our International products declined in local currencies and reduced consolidated net

sales by approximately three percent compared to 2008 stronger U.S dollar decreased sales by two

percent compared to 2008

Our gross profit margins were 25.9 percent 24.9 percent and 27.5 percent in 2009 2008 and 2007
respectively The increase in the 2009 gross profit margin reflects the improved relationship between selling

prices and commodity costs and the benefits associated with our business rationalizations and other cost

savings initiatives

Selling general and administrative expenses as percent of sales were 21.8 percent in 2009 compared
with 19.0 percent in 2008 and 17.1 percent in 2007 Selling general and administrative expenses as

percent of sales in 2009 and 2008 reflect lower sales volume increased advertising expenses related to new
product introductions and increased system implementation costs

Operating profit in 2009 2008 and 2007 includes $94 million $78 million and $78 million net

respectively of costs and charges related to our business rationalizations and other cost savings initiatives

Operating profit in 2009 2008 and 2007 includes $262 million $467 million and $1 19 million respectively of

impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets Operating profit in 2009 and 2008 includes

$7 million and $9 million respectively of charges for litigation settlements Operating profit margins as

reported were 0.7 percent 0.9 percent and 9.3 percent in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Operating

profit margins excluding the items above were 5.4 percent 6.8 percent and 11 .0 percent in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

Operating profit margins in 2009 were negatively affected by lower sales volume and the related under-

absorption of fixed costs and lower selling prices related to the decline in the new home construction market

in North America as well as lower sales volume of plumbing products in the North American and International

home improvement markets Such declines were partially offset by increased sales of paints and stains the

improved relationship between selling prices and commodity costs across our businesses and the benefits

associated with business rationalizations and other cost savings initiatives Operating profit margins in 2008
were adversely affected by accelerating declines in new home construction and continued decline in

consumer spending in North American and International markets both of which negatively impacted the
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sales volume in each of our segments and negatively impacted operating profit margins by approximately two

percentage points compared to 2007 Operating profit margins in 2007 were adversely affected by decline

in new home construction and moderation in consumer spending in North America both of which

negatively impacted the sales volume of installation and other services cabinets and windows and doors

Other Income Expense Net

During 2009 we recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges aggregating $10 million for our

investments in private equity funds

Other net for 2009 included $3 million of income from financial investments net Other net for 2009

also included realized foreign currency gains of $17 million and other miscellaneous items

During 2008 we recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges aggregating $58 million primarily

related to financial investments in TriMas common stock $31 million Asahi Tec common stock $1 million

private equity funds $23 million and other investments $3 million

Other net for 2008 included $3 million of realized losses net from the sale of marketable securities and

$4 million of income from other investments net Other net for 2008 also included realized foreign currency

losses of $29 million and other miscellaneous items

During 2007 we recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges aggregating $22 million related to

financial investments in Furniture Brands International common stock $6 million Asahi Tec common stock

$3 million auction rate securities $3 million and private equity funds $10 million

Other net for 2007 included $5 million of realized gains net from the sale of marketable securities

$6 million of dividend income and $38 million of income from other investments net Other net for 2007 also

included $9 million of realized foreign currency gains and other miscellaneous items

Interest expense was $225 million $228 million and $258 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The decrease in interest expense in 2008 is primarily due to lower interest rates and the retirement of higher

fixed-rate debt in 2007 and 2008

Loss Income and Loss Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing Operations

Attributable to Masco Corporation

Loss and diluted loss per common share from continuing operations for 2009 were $1 40 million and

$.41 per common share respectively Loss and diluted loss per common share from continuing oper

ations for 2008 were $366 million and $1 .06 per common share respectively Income and diluted earnings

per common share from continuing operations for 2007 were $502 million and $1 .32 per common share

respectively Loss from continuing operations for 2009 included non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for

goodwill of $262 million $180 million or $51 per common share after tax Loss from continuing operations

for 2008 included non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets of

$467 million $445 million or $1 .26 per common share after tax Income from continuing operations for

2007 included non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets of $1 19 million

$100 million or $.27 per common share after tax

Our effective tax rate for the loss from continuing operations was 33 percent tax benefit in 2009 and

69 percent tax expense in 2008 and for income from continuing operations was 39 percent tax expense in

2007 Our effective tax rate for income from continuing operations excluding the impairment charges for

goodwill and other intangible assets was 30 percent 57 percent and 36 percent in 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively Compared to our normalized effective tax rate of 36 percent the lower effective tax rate in 2009

is due primarily to the reversal of an accrual for unrecognized tax benefits related to withholding tax issue

from formerly held European company due to recent favorable court decision The higher effective tax rate

in 2008 reflects the additional U.S tax on repatriation of low-taxed earnings from certain foreign subsidiaries

in order to utilize foreign tax credit carryforward combined with decrease in our 2008 pre-tax income We

expect our tax rate for 2010 to be approximately 37 percent
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Outlook for the Company

We expect that business conditions in 2010 will improve compared to 2009 While we are concerned
about the impact of current unemployment levels foreclosure activity and access to financing we believe that

housing starts will improve in 2010 and will increase to range of 600000 to 700000 units from 554000 units

in 2009

While we anticipate that expenditures on repair and remodel activity will improve modestly in 2010 from
2009 levels we believe that big-ticket items will continue to be deferred until general economic conditions
credit availability and home prices improve

We are confident that the long-term fundamentals for the new home construction and home improve
ment markets are positive We believe that our strong financial position together with our current strategy of

investing in leadership brands including KraftMaid and Merillat cabinets Delta and Hansgrohe faucets Behr

paint and Milgard windows our continued focus on innovation and our commitment to lean principles will

allow us to drive long-term growth and create value for our shareholders
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Business Segment and Geographic Area Results

The following table sets forth our net sales and operating profit loss information by business segment

and geographic area dollars in millions
Percent

Change

2009 2008

vs vs

2009 2008 2007 2008 2007

Net Sales

Cabinets and Related Products $1674 $2276 2829 26% 20%

Plumbing Products 2564 3002 3272 15% 8%
Installation and Other Services 1256 1861 2615 33% 29%

Decorative Architectural Products 1714 1629 1768 5% 8%
Other Specialty Products 584 716 929 18% 23%

Total $7792 $9484 $11413 18% 17%

North America $6135 $7482 9271 18% 19%

International principally Europe 1657 2002 2142 17% 7%

Total $7792 $9484 $11413 18% 17%

2009 2009B 2008 2008B 2007 2007B

Operating Profit Loss
Cabinets and Related Products 64 64 63 336 336

Plumbing Products 237 276 110 313 271 340

Installation and Other Services 131 131 46 176 176

Decorative Architectural Products 375 375 299 299 384 384

Other Specialty Products 199 24 124 29 67 117

Total
218 480 243 710 $1234 $1353

North America 93 316 493 555 $1008 $1127

International principally Europe 125 164 250 155 226 226

Total 218 480 243 710 1234 1353

General corporate expense net 140 140 144 144 181 181

Charge for defined-benefit curtailment

Charge for litigation
settlements

Accelerated stock compensation expense

Loss gain on corporate fixed assets net

Total operating profit loss 55 317 90 557 $1061 1180

Operating Profit Loss Margin

Cabinets and Related Products 3.8% 3.8% .2% 2.8% 11.9% 11.9%

Plumbing Products 9.2% 10.8% 3.7% 10.4% 8.3% 10.4%

Installation and Other Services 10.4% 10.4% 2.5% .3% 6.7% 6.7%

Decorative Architectural Products 21.9% 21.9% 18.4% 18.4% 21.7% 21.7%

Other Specialty Products 34.1% 4.1% 17.3% 4.1% 7.2% 12.6%

North America 1.5% 5.2% 6.6% 7.4% 10.9% 12.2%

International principally Europe 7.5% 9.9% 12.5% 7.7% 10.6% 10.6%

Total 2.8% 6.2% 2.6% 7.5% 10.8% 11.9%

Total operating profit margin as reported .7% N/A .9% N/A 9.3% N/A

Before general corporate expense net charge for defined-benefit plan curtailment charge for litigation settlements accelerated stock

compensation expense and loss gain on corporate fixed assets net see Note to the consolidated financial statements

Excluding impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets The 2009 impairment charges for goodwill were as follows

Plumbing Products $39 million and Other Specialty Products $223 million The 2008 impairment charges for goodwill and

other intangible assets were as follows Cabinets and Related Products $59 million Plumbing Products $203 million

Installation and Other Services $52 million and Other Specialty Products $153 million The 2007 impairment charges for

goodwill and other intangible assets were as follows Plumbing Products $69 million and Other Specialty Products

$50 million
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Business Segment Results Discussion

Changes in operating profit margins in the following Business Segment and Geographic Area Results

discussion exclude general corporate expense net charge for defined-benefit plan curtailment charge for

litigation settlements accelerated stock compensation expense loss gain on corporate fixed assets net

and impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets in 2009 2008 and 2007

Business Rationalizations and Other Initiatives

Over the past several years we have been focused on the strategic rationalization of our businesses

including business consolidations plant closures headcount reductions system implementations and other

cost savings initiatives For the year ended December 31 2009 we incurred net costs and charges of

$94 million pre-tax related to these initiatives Based on current plans we anticipate costs and charges

related to our business rationalizations and other initiatives to approximate $38 million in 2010 We continue

to evaluate our businesses and may implement additional rationalization programs based on changes in our

markets which could result in further costs and charges In February 2010 we announced the combination of

our Builder Cabinet Group and Retail Cabinet Group to form Masco Cabinetry the additional cost is currently

estimated at approximately $30 million to $35 million

For the year ended December31 2008 we incurred net costs and charges of $78 million pre-tax related

to these initiatives For the year ended December31 2007 we incurred net costs and charges of $78 million

related to business rationalizations net of an $8 million gain from the sale of fixed assets

Cabinets and Related Products

Net sales of Cabinets and Related Products decreased in 2009 primarily due to decline in sales volume

of cabinets in the new home construction and retail markets as well as less favorable product mix which

combined to reduce sales in this segment by approximately 24 percent compared to 2008 and 16 percent in

2008 compared to 2007 Net sales in this segment were also negatively impacted by lower local currency

sales volume of International operations which reduced sales in this segment by approximately three percent

compared to 2008 and by approximately five percent in 2008 compared to 2007 Such declines were partially

offset by increased selling prices which increased sales by approximately one percent in 2009 compared to

2008 Net sales in this segment in 2007 were negatively affected by decline in sales volume of cabinets in

the new home construction market as well as decline in net sales of ready-to-assemble cabinets

stronger U.S dollar decreased sales by two percent in 2009 compared to 2008 and weaker U.S dollar

increased sales by one percent in 2008 compared to 2007

Operating profit margins in the Cabinets and Related Products segment in 2009 were negatively affected

by lower sales volume in the new home construction and retail markets and the related under-absorption of

fixed costs as well as less favorable product mix which on combined basis reduced operating profit

margins by approximately three percentage points compared to 2008 In 2009 operating profit margins in

this segment were also negatively affected by increased plant closure and system implementation costs

Such declines were partially offset by the improved relationship between selling prices and commodity costs

and the benefits associated with business rationalizations and other cost savings initiatives Operating profit

margins in this segment in 2008 were negatively affected by lower sales volume and the related under-

absorption of fixed costs and less favorable product mix which reduced operating profit margins by

approximately six percentage points compared to 2007 as well as increased plant closure and system

implementation costs In 2008 operating profit margins were also negatively affected by lower results of

International operations included in this segment which reduced operating profit margins by approximately

two percentage points compared to 2007 In 2007 operating profit margins in this segment were negatively

affected by the decline in sales volume as well as increased start-up costs and the under-utilization of two

new plants and increased severance costs Such declines were partially offset by gain on the sale of

manufacturing facility of $8 million and benefits associated with business rationalizations and other initiatives
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Plumbing Products

Net sales of Plumbing Products decreased in 2009 and 2008 primarily due to lower sales volume to

North American retailers and wholesalers which reduced sales by approximately ten percent in both 2009

compared to 2008 and in 2008 compared to 2007 Reflecting the weakened global economy net sales in this

segment in 2009 and 2008 were also negatively impacted by lower local currency sales volume of Inter

national operations which reduced sales in this segment by approximately six percent in 2009 compared to

2008 and by approximately three percent in 2008 compared to 2007 Such declines were partially offset by

net selling price increases which increased sales by approximately three percent in both 2009 compared to

2008 and in 2008 compared to 2007 Net sales in this segment in 2007 were positively affected by increased

sales volume of certain International operations as well as increased selling prices which were partially offset

by declining sales volume to North American retail and wholesale customers stronger U.S dollar

decreased sales by three percent in 2009 compared to 2008 and weaker U.S dollar increased sales

by two percent in 2008 compared to 2007

Operating profit margins in the Plumbing Products segment in 2009 were positively affected by the

improved relationship between selling prices and commodity costs as well as more favorable product mix

and the benefits associated with business rationalizations and other cost savings initiatives Operating profit

margins in this segment in 2008 were negatively affected by the decline in North American and International

sales volume which reduced operating profit margins by approximately one percentage point compared to

2007 such declines were partially offset by net selling price increases Operating profit margins in this

segment in 2007 were negatively affected by increased commodity costs in early 2007 which were offset by

selling price increases and the reduction of certain variable expenses as well as lower rationalization costs

Installation and Other Services

Net sales of Installation and Other Services decreased in 2009 and 2008 primarily due to significantly

lower sales volume related to the decline in the new home construction market which declined over

38 percent in 2009 compared to 2008 as well as lower selling prices Net sales in this segment in 2007

were negatively affected by lower sales volume related to the slowdown in the new home construction market

and declines in selling prices partially offset by acquisitions

Operating profit margins in the Installation and Other Services segment in 2009 were negatively affected

by lower sales volume and the related under-absorption of fixed costs selling price decreases and increased

system implementation costs Operating profit margins in this segment in 2008 were negatively affected by

lower sales volume and the related under-absorption of fixed costs as well as decreased selling prices and

increased bad debt expense which decreased operating profit margins by approximately seven percentage

points such declines were partially offset by material price decreases Operating profit margins in this

segment in 2007 were negatively affected by lower sales volume and the related under-absorption of fixed

costs lower selling prices and increased bad debt expense severance and location closure costs and

increased system implementation expenses such declines were partially offset by reductions in material

costs as well as benefits associated with the business rationalizations and other initiatives

Decorative Architectural Products

Net sales of Decorative Architectural Products increased in 2009 primarily due to increased retail sales

volume of paints and stains which offset lower retail sales volume of builders hardware Sales of paints and

stains in 2009 benefited from new product introductions and advertising and promotional activities Net sales

in this segment decreased in 2008 primarily due to lower retail sales volume of paints and stains and builders

hardware which more than offset selling price increases Net sales in this segment in 2007 were positively

affected by higher retail sales volume from new product introductions of paints and stains which partially

offset sales declines related to builders hardware

Operating profit margins in the Decorative Architectural Products segment in 2009 were positively

affected by increased sales volume of paints and stains which more than offset lower sales volume of

builders hardware The operating profit margins in this segment also benefited from the improved
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relationship between selling prices and commodity costs related to paints and stains and builders hardware

as well as lower program costs related to builders hardware Operating profit margins in this segment in 2008

were negatively affected by lower sales volume of paints and stains and builders hardware increasing

material costs throughout 2008 and program costs for builders hardware which more than offset the effect

of selling price increases Operating profit margins in this segment in 2007 primarily reflect increased sales

volume of paints and stains offset by increased advertising expenses

Other Specialty Products

Net sales of Other Specialty Products decreased primarily due to lower sales volume of windows in the

western United States selling price decreases and less favorable product mix which decreased sales in

this segment by approximately 12 percent in 2009 compared to 2008 Net sales in this segment also

decreased in 2009 due to decline in retail sales of staple gun tackers and other fastening tools which

reduced sales in this segment by three percent in 2009 compared to 2008 Net sales in this segment in 2008

and 2007 were negatively impacted by lower sales volume of windows and doors as well as decline in the

home improvement market Net sales in this segment were also negatively impacted by lower local currency

sales volume of International operations which reduced sales in this segment by approximately two percent

compared to 2007 due to the decline in the United Kingdom markets stronger U.S dollar decreased sales

by three percent in 2009 compared to 2008 and by one percent in 2008 compared to 2007

Operating profit margins in the Other Specialty Products segment in 2009 reflect the benefits associated

with business rationalizations and other cost savings initiatives which offset the negative affect of lower sales

volume of windows and staple gun tackers and other fastening tools and the related under-absorption of fixed

costs as well as less favorable product mix Operating profit margins in this segment in 2008 were

negatively affected by lower sales volume and the related under-absorption of fixed costs which decreased

operating profit margins by approximately seven percentage points compared to 2007 as well as increased

plant closure costs Operating profit margins were also negatively affected by lower results of International

operations which reduced operating profit margins by approximately two percentage points in 2008

compared to 2007 Operating profit margins in this segment in 2007 were negatively affected by lower

sales volume of windows and doors in the new home construction market and lower results of International

operations

Geographic Area Results Discussion

North America

North American net sales in 2009 were negatively affected by lower sales volume of installation and other

services cabinets and windows in the new home construction market which decreased sales from North

American operations by approximately 12 percent in 2009 compared to 2008 In addition North American

net sales were negatively affected by lower retail sales volume of cabinets plumbing products builders

hardware and staple gun tackers and other fastening tools which aggregated to net decrease in North

American net sales of approximately nine percent in 2009 compared to 2008 Such declines were partially

offset by increased sales of paints and stains and increased selling prices for certain products North

American net sales in 2008 were negatively affected by lower sales volume of installation and other services

cabinets and windows and doors in the new home construction market which decreased sales from North

American operations by approximately 13 percent in 2008 compared to 2007 In addition North American

net sales were negatively affected by lower retail sales volume of cabinets plumbing products paints and

stains and builders hardware which aggregated to net decrease in North American sales of approximately

eight percent in 2008 compared to 2007 North American sales in 2007 were negatively affected by lower

sales volume of installation and other services cabinets and windows and doors in the new home

construction market as well as lower retail sales volume of certain products partially offset by increased

retail sales volume of paints and stains

The declines in operating profit margins from North American operations in 2009 were primarily due to

sales volume declines and the related under-absorption of fixed costs selling price decreases and less
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favorable product mix in new home construction markets which decreased operating profit margins by one

percentage point in 2009 compared to 2008 Operating profit margins were also negatively affected by

increased rationalization costs and charges in 2009 compared to 2008 Such declines were partially offset by

the improved relationship between selling prices and commodity costs for cabinets plumbing products and

paints and stains as well as the benefits associated with business rationalizations and other cost savings

initiatives The declines in operating profit margins from North American operations in 2008 were primarily due

to declines in new home construction and consumer spending which negatively impacted the sales volume

of the Companys products and decreased operating profit margins by approximately three percentage

points in 2008 compared to 2007 The operating profit margins from North American operations in 2007 were

negatively affected by declines in new home construction and consumer spending such declines were

partially offset by selling price increases and the benefits associated with the Companys business ratio

nalizations and other initiatives

International Principally Europe

Net sales from International operations decreased in 2009 primarily due to lower sales volume of

plumbing products and cabinets which reduced sales from International operations in local currencies by

approximately 12 percent compared to 2008 and by approximately 13 percent in 2008 compared to 2007

Such declines were partially offset by selling price increases which increased sales from International

operations by approximately two percent in 2009 compared to 2008 and in 2008 compared to 2007 Net

sales from International operations in 2007 were positively affected by increased sales volume of plumbing

products stronger U.S dollar decreased International net sales by seven percent in 2009 compared to

2008 and weaker U.S dollar increased International net sales by three percent in 2008 compared to 2007

Operating profit margins in 2009 were positively affected by the improved relationship between selling

prices and commodity costs as well as the benefits associated with business rationalizations and other cost

savings initiatives Operating profit margins in 2008 were negatively affected by lower sales volumes and the

related under-absorption of fixed costs as well as increased severance and plant closure costs Operating

profit margins in 2007 were negatively affected by less favorable product mix and material cost increases

Other Matters

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

Information regarding our legal proceedings is set forth in Note to the consolidated financial

statements

Other Commitments

With respect to our investments in private equity funds we had at December31 2009 commitments to

contribute up to $37 million of additional capital to such funds representing our aggregate capital com
mitment to such funds less capital contributions made to date We are contractually obligated to make

additional capital contributions to these private equity funds upon receipt of capital call from the private

equity fund We have no control over when or if the capital calls will occur Capital calls are funded in cash and

generally result in an increase in the carrying value of our investment in the private equity fund when paid

We enter into contracts which include reasonable and customary indemnifications that are standard for

the industries in which we operate Such indemnifications include claims made against builders by home

owners for issues relating to our products and workmanship In conjunction with divestitures and other

transactions we occasionally provide reasonable and customary indemnifications relating to various items

including the enforceability of trademarks legal and environmental issues and provisions for sales returns

We have never had to pay material amount related to these indemnifications and we evaluate the

probability that amounts may be incurred and we appropriately record an estimated liability
when probable
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Contractual Obligations

The following table provides payment obligations related to current contracts at December 31 2009 in

millions

Payments Due by Period

Less than 2-3 4-5 More than

Year Years Years Years OtherD Total

Debt $364 879 $203 $2522 $3968

Interest 217 411 314 860 1802

Operating leases 68 80 42 53 243

Currently payable income taxes 12 12

Defined-benefit plans 45 94 102 280 521

Private equity funds 19 18 37

Post-retirement obligations

Purchase commitments 195 198

Unrecognized tax benefits including

interest and penalties 78 86

Total $929 $1486 $663 $3719 $78 $6875

We assumed that all debt would be held to maturity except for the Zero Coupon Convertible Senior

Notes which have been classified as short-term debt at December 31 2009 See Note to the

consolidated financial statements for more information

There is no schedule for the capital commitments to the private equity funds such allocation was

estimated

Excludes contracts that do not require volume commitments and open or pending purchase orders

Due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with

unrecognized tax benefits we are unable to make reasonable estimate for the period beyond the

next year in which cash settlements may occur with applicable tax authorities

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance regarding how company determines when an entity that is

insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting should be consolidated The determination of

whether company is required to consolidate an entity is based on among other things an entitys purpose

and design and companys ability to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entitys economic

performance This guidance is effective for the Company beginning January 2010 The Company does not

expect that the adoption will have significant impact on its consolidated financial condition and results of

operations
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We have considered the provisions of accounting guidance regarding disclosure of accounting policies

for derivative financial instruments and derivative commodity instruments and disclosure of quantitative and

qualitative information about market risk inherent in derivative financial instruments other financial instru

ments and derivative commodity instruments

We are exposed to the impact of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates in the

normal course of business and to market price fluctuations related to our marketable securities and other

investments We have limited involvement with derivative financial instruments and use such instruments to

the extent necessary to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency fluctuations

and from time to time commodity fluctuations See Note to the consolidated financial statements for

additional information regarding our derivative instruments

At December31 2009 we have entered into foreign currency forward contracts to manage exposure to

currency fluctuations related primarily to the European euro and the U.S dollar

At December31 2009 we performed sensitivity analyses to assess the potential loss in the fair values of

market risk sensitive instruments resulting from hypothetical change of 10 percent in foreign currency

exchange rates or 10 percent decline in the market value of our long-term investments Based upon the

analyses performed such changes would not be expected to materially affect our consolidated financial

position results of operations or cash flows
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Masco Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting Masco Corporations internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America

The management of Masco Corporation assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway CommissionCOSO in Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on

this assessment management has determined that the Companys internal control over financial reporting

was effective as of December 31 2009

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm performed an audit of

the Companys consolidated financial statements and of the effectiveness of Masco Corporations internal

control over financial reporting as of December31 2009 Their report expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of Masco Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 and

expressed an unqualified opinion on the Companys 2009 consolidated financial statements This report

appears under Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data under the heading Report of Inde

pendent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Masco Corporation

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15a1
present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Masco Corporation and its subsidiaries at

December 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement schedule listed in the

index appearing under Item 5a2 presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the

Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys man

agement is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule for maintaining

effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

appearing under Item Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements on the

financial statement schedule and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our

integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of

the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal

control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has changed the manner

in which it accounts for noncontrolling interests in 2009 As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial

statements the Company changed its method of accounting for unrecognized tax benefits in 2007

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Detroit Michigan

February 16 2010
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MASCO CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

at December 31 2009 and 2008

In Millions Except Share Data
2009 2008

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash investments $1413 $1 028

Receivables 983 999

Inventories 743 941

Prepaid expenses and other 312 332

Total current assets 3451 3300

Property and equipment net 1981 2136

Goodwill 3108 3371

Other intangible assets net 290 299

Other assets 345 377

Total Assets $9175 $9483

LIABILITIES and EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 578 531

Notes payable 364 71

Accrued liabilities 839 945

Total current liabilities 1781 1547

Long-term debt 3604 3915

Deferred income taxes and other 973 1040

Total Liabilities 6358 6502

Commitments and contingencies

Equity

Masco Corporations shareholders equity

Common shares authorized 400000000 issued and outstanding 2009

350400000 2008351400000 350 351

Preferred shares authorized 1000000 issued and outstanding 2009 and

2008 None
Paid-in capital 42

Retained earnings 1871 2162

Accumulated other comprehensive income 366 308

Total Masco Corporations shareholders equity 2629 2821

Noncontrolling interest 188 160

Total Equity 2817 2981

Total Liabilities and Equity $9175 $9483

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MASCO CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

In Millions Except Per Common Share Data
2009 2008 2007

Net sales $7792 $9484 $11413

Cost of sales 5774 7125 8280

Gross profit 2018 2359 3133

Selling general and administrative expenses 1701 1802 1953

Impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets 262 467 119

Operating profit 55 90 1061

Other income expense net

Interest expense 225 228 258

Impairment charges for financial investments 10 58 22
Other net 29 95

206 283 185

Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes 151 193 876

Income tax benefit expense 49 134 337

Loss income from continuing operations 102 327 539

Loss from discontinued operations net 43 25 116

Net loss income 145 352 423

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 38 39 37

Net loss income attributable to Masco Corporation 183 391 386

Earnings loss per common share attributable to Masco Corporation

Basic

Loss income from continuing operations .41 1.06 1.33

Loss from discontinued operations net .12 .07 .31

Net loss income .53 1.13 1.02

Diluted

Loss income from continuing operations .41 .06 .32

Loss from discontinued operations net .12 .07 .31

Net loss income .53 .13 .02

Amounts attributable to Masco Corporation

Loss income from continuing operations 140 366 502

Loss from discontinued operations net 43 25 116

Net loss income 183 391 386

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MASCO CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

In Millions
2009 2008 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss income 145 352 423

Depreciation and amortization 254 238 248

Deferred income taxes 83 20 41
Loss on disposition of businesses net 40 38 18

Gain on disposition of investments net 41
Charge for litigation settlements

Impairment charges

Financial investments 10 58 22

Goodwill and other intangible assets 262 467 227

Stock-based compensation 69 74 94

Other items net 58 84 37

Decrease in receivables 20 294 243

Decrease in inventories 198 104 157

Increase decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities net 17 237 17

Net cash from operating activities 705 797 270

CASH FLOWS FROM FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in debt

Payment of debt 14 33 56
Issuance of notes net of issuance costs 596

Retirement of notes 100 425
Proceeds from settlement of swaps 16

Purchase of Company common stock 11 160 857
Issuance of Company common stock 60

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 19

Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest 16 21 14
Cash dividends paid 166 336 347

Net cash for financing activities 197 631 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures 125 200 248
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 21 203
Purchases of auction rate securities 1047
Proceeds from disposition of auction rate securities 1025
Proceeds from disposition of

Marketable securities 10 55

Businesses net of cash disposed 179 45

Property and equipment 23 45

Other financial investments net 48 75

Other net 27 31 80
Net cash for investing activities 18 14 333

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash investments 46 47

CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS

Increase decrease for the year 385 106 1036
AtJanuaryl 1028 922 1958

AtDecember3l $1413 $1028 922

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MASCO CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Balance January 2007

Net income

Cumulative translation adjustments

Unrealized loss on marketable securities net of income

tax benefit of $5

Unrecognized prior service cost and net loss net of

income tax of $27

Total comprehensive income

Cumulative effect of accounting change regarding

income tax uncertainties Note
Other

Shares issued

Shares retired

Repurchased

Surrendered non-cash

Cash dividends declared

Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest

Stock-based compensation

Purchase of noncontrolling interest preferred shares

Balance December 31 2007

Net loss income

Cumulative translation adjustments

Unrealized gain on marketable securities net of

income tax of $4

Unrecognized prior servce cost and net loss net of

income tax benefit of $86

Total comprehensive loss

Shares issued

Shares retired

Repurchased

Surrendered non-cash

Cash dividends declared

Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest

Stock-based compensation

Balance December 31 2008

Net loss income

Cumulative translation adjustments

Unrealized gain on marketable securities net of

income tax of $13

Unrecognized prior service cost and net loss net of

income tax benefit of $20

Total comprehensive loss

Shares issued

Shares retired

Repurchased

Surrendered non-cash
Cash dividends declared

Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest

Stock-based compensation

Balance December 31 2009

857
14

346
14

118

42

$4142

352
221

150 150

716

71

78

$351

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Total

$4579

423

143

49

608

26

59

In Millions Except Per Share Data
Accumulated

Common Other

Shares Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling

$1 par value Capital Earnings Income Interest

$384 $3575 $491 $129

386 37

128 15

49

26

55

31 213 613
14

346
14

118

54
_____ 14

$359 $2969 $661 $153

391 39

210 11

21

$160

38

16

_____
$188

160 80

336 336
21
78

______

$2981 $2162 $308

145 183
28 22

22 22

14 14

81

11

108 108
16
56 56

_____

$2817 $350 42 $1871 $366
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Masco

Corporation and all majority-owned subsidiaries All significant intercompany transactions have been

eliminated The Company consolidates the assets liabilities and results of operations of variable interest

entities for which the Company is the primary beneficiary

Use of Estimates and Assumptions in the Preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of

financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America requires the Company to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results

may differ from these estimates and assumptions

Revenue Recognition The Company recognizes revenue as title to products and risk of loss is

transferred to customers or when services are rendered net of applicable provisions for discounts returns

and allowances The Company records revenue for unbilled services performed based upon estimates of

labor incurred in the Installation and Other Services segment such amounts are recorded in Receivables

Amounts billed for shipping and handling are included in net sales while costs incurred for shipping and

handling are included in cost of sales

Customer Promotion Costs The Company records estimated reductions to revenue for customer

programs and incentive offerings including special pricing and co-operative advertising arrangements

promotions and other volume-based incentives In-store displays that are owned by the Company and used

to market the Companys products are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets and are

amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of three years related amortization

expense is classified as selling expense in the consolidated statements of income

Foreign Currency The financial statements of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are measured using

the local currency as the functional currency Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at

exchange rates as of the balance sheet date Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange

rates in effect during the year The resulting cumulative translation adjustments have been recorded in the

accumulated other comprehensive income component of shareholders equity Realized foreign currency

transaction gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of income in other income

expense net

Cash and Cash Investments The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an initial

maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash investments

Receivables The Company does significant business with number of customers including certain

home centers and homebuilders The Company monitors its exposure for credit losses on its customer

receivable balances and the credit worthiness of its customers on an on-going basis and records related

allowances for doubtful accounts Allowances are estimated based upon specific customer balances where

risk of default has been identified and also include provision for non-customer specific defaults based

upon historical collection return and write-off activity During downturns in the Companys markets declines

in the financial condition and creditworthiness of customers impacts the credit risk of the receivables involved

and the Company has incurred additional bad debt expense related to customer defaults separate

allowance is recorded for customer incentive rebates and is generally based upon sales activity Receivables

are presented net of certain allowances including allowances for doubtful accounts of $75 million at both

December 31 2009 and 2008 Receivables include unbilled revenue related to the Installation and Other

Services segment of $15 million and $24 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

43



MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Property and Equipment Property and equipment including significant betterments to existing facil

ities are recorded at cost Upon retirement or disposal the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed

from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the consolidated statements of income Maintenance

and repair costs are charged against earnings as incurred

The Company reviews its property and equipment as an event occurs or circumstances change that

would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the property and equipment below the carrying amount If

the carrying amount of property and equipment is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows then the

Company would recognize an impairment loss for the difference between the carrying amount and the

current fair value Further the Company evaluates the remaining useful lives of property and equipment at

each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant revision to the remaining

depreciation periods

Depreciation Depreciation expense is computed principally using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives of the assets Annual depreciation rates are as follows buildings and land improve

ments to 10 percent and machinery and equipment to 33 percent Depreciation expense was

$237 million $220 million and $215 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The Company performs its annual impairment testing of

goodwill in the fourth quarter of each year or as events occur or circumstances change that would more

likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying amount The Company has defined its

reporting units and completed the impairment testing of goodwill at the operating segment level The

Companys operating segments are reporting units that engage in business activities for which discrete

financial information including five-year forecasts are available The Company compares the fair value of the

reporting units to the carrying value of the reporting units for goodwill impairment testing Fair value is

determined using discounted cash flow method which includes significant unobservable inputs Level

inputs

Determining market values using discounted cash flow method requires the Company to make

significant estimates and assumptions including long-term projections of cash flows market conditions and

appropriate discount i-ates The Companys judgments are based upon historical experience current market

trends consultations with external valuation specialists and other information In estimating future cash flows

the Company relies on internally generated five-year forecasts for sales and operating profits including capital

expenditures and generally one to three percent long-term assumed annual growth rate of cash flows for

periods after the five-year forecast The Company generally utilizes its weighted average cost of capital

discount rate of approximately nine percent to discount the estimated cash flows However in 2009 and

2008 due to market conditions the Company increased the discount rate for most of its reporting units

based upon review of the current risks impacting our businesses The Company records an impairment to

goodwill adjusting the value to the estimated fair value if the book value is below the estimated fair value on

non-recurring basis

The Company reviews its other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually in the fourth

quarter of each year or as events occur or circumstances change that indicate the assets may be impaired

without regard to the reporting unit The Company considers the implications of both external e.g market

growth competition and local economic conditions and internal e.g product sales and expected product

growth factors and their potential impact on cash flows related to the intangible asset in both the near- and

long-term

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives The Company evaluates the remaining useful lives of amortizable identifiable intangible assets at

each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant revision to the remaining
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

periods of amortization See Note for additional information regarding Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets

Fair Value Accounting On January 2008 the Company adopted fair value guidance for its financial

investments and liabilities which defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and

expands disclosures about fair value measurements On January 2009 the Company adopted this

guidance for its non-financial investments and liabilities such adoption did not have significant effect on its

consolidated financial statements

The fair value of financial investments and liabilities is determined at each balance sheet date and future

declines in market conditions the future performance of the underlying investments or new information could

affect the recorded values of the Companys investments in marketable securities private equity funds and

other private investments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain exposure to fluctuations in

earnings and cash flows resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates

Derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as either an asset or liability

measured at fair value For each derivative financial instrument that is designated and qualifies as fair-value

hedge the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item

attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in determining current earnings during the period of the

change in fair values For derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments the gain or loss is

recognized in determining current earnings during the period of the change in fair value

Warranty At the time of sale the Company accrues warranty liability for estimated costs to provide

products parts or services to repair or replace products in satisfaction of warranty obligations The

Companys estimate of costs to service its warranty obligations is based upon historical experience and

expectations of future conditions

majority of the Companys business is at the consumer retail level through home centers and major

retailers consumer may return product to retail outlet that is warranty return However certain retail

outlets do not distinguish between warranty and other types of returns when they claim return deduction

from the Company The Companys revenue recognition policy takes into account this type of return when

recognizing revenue and deductions are recorded at the time of sale

Product Liability The Company provides for expenses associated with product liability obligations

when such amounts are probable and can be reasonably estimated The accruals are adjusted as new

information develops or circumstances change that would affect the estimated liability

Stock-Based Compensation The Company measures compensation expense for stock awards at the

market price of the Companys common stock at the grant date Effective January 2006 such expense is

being recognized ratably over the shorter of the vesting period of the stock awards typically to 10 years

except for stock awards held by grantees age 66 or older which vest over five years or the length of time

until the grantee becomes retirement-eligible at age 65 For stock awards granted prior to January 2006

such expense is being recognized over the vesting period of the stock awards typically 10 years or for

executive grantees that are or will become retirement-eligible during the vesting period the expense is being

recognized over five years or immediately upon grantees retirement

The Company measures compensation expense for stock options using Black-Scholes option pricing

model For stock options granted subsequent to January 2006 such expense is being recognized ratably

over the shorter of the vesting period of the stock options typically five years or the length of time until the

grantee becomes retirement-eligible at age 65 The expense for unvested stock options at January 2006 is

based upon the grant date fair value of those options as calculated using Black-Scholes option pricing

45



MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ACCOUNTING POLICIES Concluded

modeL For stock options granted prior to January 2006 such expense is being recognized ratably over the

vesting period of the stock options typically five years The Company utilizes the shortcut method to

determine the tax windfall pool associated with stock options

Noncontrolling Interest The Company owns 68 percent of Hansgrohe AG at both December31 2009 and

2008 In accordance with new guidance the aggregate noncontrolling interest net of dividends at December31

2009 and 2008 has been recorded as component of equity on the Companys consolidated balance sheets

In May 2007 put option was exercised and the Company issued two million shares of Company

common stock with value of $56 million for an additional four percent ownership in Hansgrohe AG

Interest and Penalties on Unrecognized Tax Benefits The Company records interest and penalties on

its unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense

Reclassifications Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presen

tation in the consolidated financial statements The results of operations related to 2009 2008 and 2007

discontinued operations have been reclassified and separately stated in the accompanying consolidated

statements of income for 2009 2008 and 2007 In the Companys consolidated statements of cash flows the

cash flows from discontinued operations are not separately classified

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance regarding

how company determines when an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled through voting

should be consolidated The determination of whether company is required to consolidate an entity is based

on among other things an entitys purpose and design and companys ability to direct the activities that

most significantly impact the entitys economic performance This guidance is effective for the Company

beginning January 2010 The Company does not expect that the adoption will have significant impact on

its consolidated financial condition and results of operations

Subsequent Events The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 16 2010 the

date the Companys consolidated financial statements were issued

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company sold several business units that were not core to the

Companys long-term growth strategy The presentation of discontinued operations includes component of

the Company which comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of

the Company The Company has accounted for the business units which were sold in 2009 2008 and 2007

except as noted as discontinued operations

During 2009 in separate transactions the Company completed the sale of Damixa and Breuer two

European business units in the Plumbing Products segment The Company received gross proceeds of

$9 million and recognized net pre-tax loss of $43 million for the sale of these business units

During 2009 the Company recorded income of $1 million included in loss gain on disposal of

discontinued operations net related to cash received for disposition completed in prior years Also during

2009 the Company recorded other income of $2 million included in loss gain on disposal of discontinued

operations net reflecting the settlement of certain liabilities related to business unit disposed in prior years

During 2008 in separate transactions the Company completed the sale of its Europe-based The

Heating Group business unit Other Specialty Products segment Glass ldromassaggio Plumbing Products

segment and Alfred Reinecke Plumbing Products segment Total net proceeds from the sale of these

business units were $174 million The Company recorded an impairment of assets related to these

discontinued operations which primarily included the write-down of goodwill of $24 million and other assets

of $21 million upon completion of the transactions the Company recognized net gain of $6 million included

in loss gain on disposal of discontinued operations net During 2008 the Company recorded other net
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS Concluded

expenses of $3 million included in loss gain on disposal of discontinued operations net reflecting the

adjustment of certain liabilities related to businesses disposed in prior years

During 2007 the Company completed the sale of Avocet European business unit in the Decorative

Architectural Products segment Total gross proceeds from the sale were $41 million the Company

recognized pre-tax net loss on the disposition of Avocet of $1 million During 2007 the Company

recorded other net gains of $1 million reflecting the receipt of additional purchase price payments related to

businesses disposed in 2006 and 2005

Losses gains from these 2009 2008 and 2007 discontinued operations were included in loss from

discontinued operations net in the consolidated statements of income

Selected financial information for the discontinued operations during the period owned by the Company
were as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Net sales $66 $216 420

Loss from discontinued operations $1 $1 04

Impairment of assets held for sale 45
Loss gain on disposal of discontinued operations net 40 10

Loss before income tax 50 47 114
Income tax benefit expense 22

Loss from discontinued operations net $43 $25 $1 16

Included in income tax benefit expense above was income tax benefit expense related to loss from

discontinued operations of $1 million $1 million and $1 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Loss
from discontinued operations also includes non-cash pre-tax and after tax impairment charges for goodwill

of $108 million in 2007 The unusual relationship between income taxes and loss before income taxes

resulted primarily from certain losses providing no current tax benefit

During 2007 the Company completed the sale of two small businesses the results of which were

included in continuing operations through the dates of sale These small businesses in the Plumbing Products

segment had combined net sales and operating loss of $12 million and $400000 respectively in 2007

through the respective dates of sale Gross proceeds from the sale of these businesses were $10 million the

Company recognized net loss of $8 million included in other net in continuing operations related to the sale

of these businesses for the year ended December 31 2007
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

ACQUISITIONS

During 2009 the Company acquired small business in the Plumbing Products segment this business

allows the Company to expand into developing market and had annual sales of $1 million During 2008

the Company acquired relatively small countertop business Cabinet and Related Products segment which

allows the Company 10 expand the products and services it offers to its customers and had annual sales of

over $40 million During 2007 the Company acquired several relatively small installation service businesses

Installation and Other Services segment as well as Erickson Construction Company and Guy Evans Inc

Installation and Other Services segment

The results of all acquisitions are included in the consolidated financial statements from the respective

dates of acquisition

The total net purchase price of these acquisitions was as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Cash net $6 $18 $195

Assumed debt

Total $6 $18 $202

Certain purchase agreements provided for the payment of additional consideration in cash contingent

upon whether certain conditions are met including the operating perlormance of the acquired business In

2008 the Company paid in cash an additional $1 million of acquisition-related consideration contingent

consideration and other purchase price adjustments relating to previously acquired companies At Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2008 there was no outstanding contingent consideration

INVENTORIES

In Millions
At December 31

2009 2008

Finished goods $405 $483

Raw material 247 333

Work in process 91 125

Total $743 $941

Inventories which include purchased parts materials direct labor and applied manufacturing overhead are

stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value with cost determined by use of the first-in first-out method

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIES

Accounting Policy On January 2008 the Company adopted fair value guidance that defines fair

value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measure

ments for its financial investments and liabilities The guidance defines fair value as the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date Further it defines fair value hierarchy as follows Level inputs as quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level inputs as observable inputs other than Level prices

such as quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by market data and Level inputs as unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no

market activity and that are financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models or

instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIES Continued

Financial investments that are available to be traded on readily accessible stock exchanges domestic or

foreign are considered to have active markets and have been valued using Level inputs Financial

investments that are not available to be traded on public market or have limited secondary markets or

contain provisions that limit the ability to sell the investment are considered to have inactive markets and have

been valued using Level or inputs The Company incorporated credit risk into the valuations of financial

investments by estimating the likelihood of non-performance by the counterparty to the applicable trans

actions The estimate included the length of time relative to the contract financial condition of the counter-

party and current market conditions The criteria for determining if market was active or inactive were based

on the individual facts and circumstances

Financial Investments Th.e Company has maintained investments in available-for-sale securities and

number of private equity funds and other private investments principally as part of its tax planning strategies

as any gains enhance the utilization of any current and future tax capital losses

Financial investments included in other assets were as follows in millions

At December 31

2009 2008

Asahi Tec Corporation common and preferred stock 71 73

Auction rate securities 22 22

TriMas Corporation common stock 17

Marketable securities

Other investments

Total recurring investments 110 104

Private equity funds 123 138

Other investments

Total non-recurring investments 132 145

Total $242 $249

The Companys investments in available-for-sale securities at December 31 2009 and 2008 were as

follows in millions

Pre-tax

Unrealized Unrealized Recorded
Cost Basis Gains Losses Basis

December3l2009 $71 $39 $110

December3l2008 $75 $26 $101

The Companys investments in private equity funds and other private investments are carried at cost At

December31 2009 the Company has investments in 17 venture capital funds with an aggregate carrying value

of $28 million The venture capital funds invest in start-up or smaller early-stage established businesses

principally in the information technology bio-technology and health care sectors At December 31 2009 the

Company also has investments in 28 buyout funds with an aggregate carrying value of $95 million The buyout

funds invest in later-stage established businesses and other than the Heartland Industrial Partners Fund

Heartland Fund which is primarily in the automotive and transportation sector no buyout fund has

concentration in particular sector
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MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIES Continued

Recurring Fair Value Measurements For financial investments measured at fair value on recurring

basis at each reporting period the unrealized gains or losses that are deemed to be temporary are

recognized net of tax effect through shareholders equity as component of other comprehensive income

Realized gains and losses and charges for other-than-temporary impairments are included in determining net

income with related purchase costs based upon specific identification

For marketable securities the Company reviews on recurring basis industry analyst reports key ratios

and statistics market analyses and other factors for each investment to determine if an unrealized loss is

other-than-temporary

In the past the Company invested excess cash in auction rate securities Auction rate securities are

investment securities that have interest rates which are reset every 28 or 35 days The fair values of the

auction rate securities held by the Company have been estimated on recurring basis using discounted

cash flow model Level input The significant inputs in the discounted cash flow model used to value the

auction rate securities include expected maturity of auction rate securities discount rate used to determine

the present value of expected cash flows and assumptions for credit defaults since the auction rate securities

are backed by credit default swap agreements

In December 2009 the Company sold its investment in Asahi Tec common stock for proceeds approx

imating book value The preferred stock of Asahi Tec has been valued primarily using discounted cash flow

model because there are currently no observable prices in an active market for the same or similar securities

The significant inputs in the discounted cash flow model used to value the Asahi Tec preferred stock include the

present value of future dividends present value of redemption rights fair value of conversion rights and the

discount rate based on credit spreads for Japanese-issued preferred securities and other market factors The

Asahi Tec preferred stock accrues dividends at an annual rate of .75% cash at the discretion of Asahi Tec or

noncash dividends at an annual rate of $1 .75% plus an additional dividend at an annual rate of 3.75% on the

unpaid noncash dividend the Company has elected to record such dividends when cash proceeds are

received For the year ended December 31 2008 the unrealized loss of $2 million related to the change in fair

value of the derivative related to the conversion feature on the Asahi Tec preferred stock has been included in

the Companys consolidated statements of income in income from other investments net At both Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2008 the conversion feature value was deemed insignificant

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements It is not practicable for the Company to estimate fair

value for private equity funds and other private investments because there are no quoted market prices

and sufficient information is not readily available for the Company to utilize valuation model to determine

the fair value for each fund These investments are evaluated on non-recurring basis for potential

other-than-temporary impairment when impairment indicators are present or when an event or change in

circumstances has occurred that may have significant adverse effect on the fair value of the investment

Impairment indicators the Company considers include the following whether there has been significant

deterioration in earnings performance asset quality or business prospects significant adverse change in the

regulatory economic or technological environment significant adverse change in the general market

condition or geographic area in which the investment operates industry and sector performance current

equity and credit market conditions and any bona tide offers to purchase the investment for less than the

carrying value The Company also considers specific adverse conditions related to the financial health of and

business outlook for the fund including industry and sector performance The significant assumptions utilized in

analyzing fund for potential other-than-temporary impairment include current economic conditions market

analysis for specific funds and performance indicators in the automotive and transportation residential and

commercial construction bio-technology health care and information technology sectors in which the given

funds investments operate Since there is no active trading market for these investments they are for the most
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part illiquid These investments by their nature can also have relatively higher degree of business risk

including financial leverage than other financial investments Future changes in market conditions the future

performance of the underlying investments or new information provided by private equity fund managers could

affect the recorded values of such investments and the amounts realized upon liquidation Due to the significant

unobservable inputs the fair value measurements used to evaluate impairment are Level input

Recurring Fair Value Measurements Financial investments and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis at each reporting period and the amounts for each level within the fair value hierarchy were as

follows in millions

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant

Quoted Other Significant

Market Observable Unobservable
Dec 31 Prices Inputs Inputs

2009 Level Level Level

Asahi Tec Corporation

Preferred stock 71 $71

Auction rate securities 22 22

TriMas Corporation 17 17

Total $0 $17 $- $93

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant

Quoted Other Significant

Market Observable Unobservable
Dec 31 Prices Inputs Inputs

2008 Level Level Level

Asahi Tec Corporation

Preferred stock 72 $72

Common stock

Auction rate securities 22 22

Marketable securities

TriMas Corporation

Other private investments

Total $4 $7 $3 $94

The following table summarizes the changes in Level financial investments measured at fair value on

recurring basis for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 in millions

Asahi Tec Auction Rate
Preferred Stock Securities Thtal

Fair value January 2009 $72 $22 $94

Total losses included in earnings

Unrealized losses

Purchases issuances settlements

Fair value at December 31 2009 $71 $22 $93
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Asahi Tec Auction Rate

Preferred Stock Securities

Fair value January 2008 $55 $22

Total losses included in earnings

Unrealized gains
17

Purchases issuances settlements

Fair value at December 31 2008

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Financial investments measured at fair value on

non-recurring basis during the period and the amounts for each level within the fair value hierarchy were

as follows in millions

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant

Quoted Other Significant

Market Observable Unobservable Total

Prices Inputs Inputs Gains

Level Level Level Losses

$31 $10

$34 $10

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant

Other Significant

Observable Unobservable Total

Inputs Inputs Gains

_______ _______ Level Level Losses

$43 $23

$47 $26

The Companys investments in private equity funds for which fair value was determined with unrealized

losses were as follows in millions

Unrealized Loss

Fair Value Less than 12 Months Over 12 Months

December 31 2009

December 31 2008

The remaining private equity investments in 2009 and 2008 with an aggregate carrying value of

$92 million and $95 million respectively were not reviewed for impairment as there were no indicators

of impairment or identified events or changes in circumstances that would have significant adverse effect on

the fair value of the investment

Realized Gains Losses and Impairment Charges During 2009 the Company determined that the

decline in the estimated value of five private equity funds with an aggregate carrying value of $41 million prior

to impairment was other-than-temporary Accordingly for the year ended December31 2009 the Company

recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges of $10 million

MASCO CORPORATION
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Total

$77

17

$94$72 $22

Dec 31
2009

Private equity funds $31

Other private investments

$34

Private equity funds

Other private investments

Quoted
Market

Dec 31 Prices

2008 Level

$43

$47
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During 2008 based upon its review of marketable securities the Company recognized non-cash pre
tax impairment charges of $31 million related to its investment in TriMas Corporation TriMas common
stock NYSE TRS and $1 million related to its investment in Asahi Tec Corporation Asahi Tec common
stock Tokyo Stock Exchange 5606.T During 2008 the Company determined that the decline in the

estimated value of certain private equity fund investments with an aggregate carrying value of $66 million

prior to the impairment was other-than-temporary Accordingly for the year ended December 31 2008 the

Company recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges of $23 million review of sector performance

and other factors specific to the underlying investments in six funds having other-than-temporary declines in

fair value including the Heartland Fund automotive and transportation sector of $10 million and five other

funds $13 million

During 2007 the Company recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges of $6 million related to its

investment in Furniture Brands International common stock NYSE FBN and $3 million related to its

investment in Asahi Tec common stock During 2007 the Company also recognized non-cash pre-tax

impairment charge of $3 million related to auction rate securities For the year ended December 31 2007 as

result of the acquisition of Metaldyne Corporation by Asahi Tec the Company recognized gain of

$14 million net of transaction fees included in the Companys consolidated statement of income in income

from other investments net In addition immediately prior to its sale Metaldyne distributed shares of TriMas

common stock as dividend to the holders of Metaldyne common stock the Company recognized income of

$4 million included in the Companys consolidated statement of income in dividend income from other

investments for the year ended December 31 2007 Also during 2007 the Company determined that the

decline in the estimated value of certain private equity fund investments with an aggregate carrying value of

$54 million prior to the impairment was other-than-temporary Accordingly for the year ended December31
2007 the Company recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment charges of $10 million

Income from financial investments net included in other net within other income expense net and

impairment charges for financial investments were as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Realized gains from marketable securities

Realized losses from marketable securities

Dividend income from marketable securities

Income from other investments net 38

Dividend income from other investments

Income from financial investments net $3 $1 $49

Impairment charges

Private equity funds $1 $23 $1

Auction rate securities

Marketable securities

TriMas Corporation 31
Other private investments

Total impairment charges $10 $58 $22

The impairment charges related to the Companys financial investments recognized during 2009 2008

and 2007 were based upon then-current estimates for the fair value of certain financial investments such

estimates could change in the near-term based upon future events and circumstances
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The fair value of the Companys short-term and long-term fixed-rate debt instruments is based principally

upon quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or the current rates available to the Company for

debt with similar terms and remaining maturities The aggregate estimated market value of short-term and

long-term debt at December 31 2009 was approximately $3.9 billion compared with the aggregate carrying

value of $4.0 billion The aggregate estimated market value of short-term and long-term debt at December31

2008 was approximately $3.0 billion compared with the aggregate carrying value of $3.9 billion

DERIVATIVES

During 2009 the Company including certain European operations had entered into foreign currency

forward contracts with notional amounts of $55 million and $10 million to manage exposure to currency

fluctuations in the European euro and the U.S dollar respectively At December 31 2008 the Company

including certain European operations had entered into foreign currency forward contracts with notional

amounts of $31 million and $14 million to manage exposure to currency fluctuations in the European euro and

the U.S dollar respectively Based upon year-end market prices the Company had recorded $1 million

loss and $2 million gain to reflect the contract prices at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Gains

losses related to these contracts are recorded in the Companys consolidated statements of income in other

income expense net In the event that the counterparties fail to meet the terms of the foreign currency

forward contracts the Companys exposure is limited to the aggregate foreign currency rate differential with

such institutions

At December 31 2008 the Company had entered into foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge

currency fluctuations related to intercompany loans denominated in non-functional currencies with notional

amounts of $161 million At December31 2008 the Company had recorded $16 million loss on the foreign

currency exchange contract which was more than offset by gains related to the translation of loans and

accounts denominated in non-functional currencies

The fair value of these derivative contracts is estimated on recurring basis quarterly using Level

inputs significant other observable inputs

In 2009 the Company recognized decrease in interest expense of $10 million related to the amor

tization of the gains resulting from the terminations in 2008 and 2004 of two interest rate swap agreements

In 2008 the Company recognized decrease in interest expense of $12 million related to the interest rate

swap agreements In 2007 the Company recognized an increase in interest expense of $3 million related to

these swap agreements due to increasing interest rates
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In Millions
At December 31

2009 2008

Land and improvements 195 203

Buildings 1044 1056

Machinery and equipment 2420 2486

3659 3745

Less Accumulated depreciation 1678 1609

Total $1981 $2136

The Company leases certain equipment and plant facilities under noncancellable operating leases

Rental expense recorded in the consolidated statements of income totaled approximately $135 million

$161 million and $166 million during 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Future minimum lease payments at

December 31 2009 were approximately as follows 2010 $68 million 2011 $49 million

2012 $31 million 2013 $16 million and 2014 and beyond $79 million

The Company leases operating facilities from certain related parties primarily former owners and in

certain cases current management personnel of companies acquired The Company recorded rental

expense to such related parties of approximately $8 million $10 million and $7 million in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for 2009 and 2008 by segment were as follows in

millions

Gross Goodwill Accumulated Net Goodwill
At December 31 Impairment At December 31

2009 Losses 2009

Cabinets and Related Products 590 364 226

Plumbing Products 547 340 207

Installation and Other Services 1819 51 1768
Decorative

Architectural Products 294 294

Other Specialty Products 980 367 613

Total $4230 $1122 $3108
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Gross Goodwill Accumulated Net Goodwill Pre-tax Net Goodwill

At December 31 Impairment At December 31 Discontinued Impairment At December 31

2008 Losses 2008 AdditionsA Operations Charge OtherC 2009

Cabinets and Related

Products 589 $364 225 $1 226

Plumbing Products 549 301 248 13 39 207

Installation and Other

Services 1819 51 1768 1768

Decorative Architectural

Products 294 294 294

Other Specialty
Products 980 144 836 223 613

Total $4231 $860 $3371 $4 $13 $262 $8 $3108

Gross Goodwill Accumulated Net Goodwill Pretax Net Goodwill

At December 31 Impairment At December 31 Discontinued Impairment At December 31

2007 Losses 2007 AdditionsA Operations Charge OtherC 2008

Cabinets and Related

Products 598 $305 293 $4 59 $13 225

Plumbing Products 597 98 499 203 48 248

Installation and Other

Services 1816 1816 51 1768

Decorative Architectural

Products 300 300 294

Other Specialty

Products 1031 1030 24 143 27 836

Total $4342 $404 $3938 $6 $24 $456 $93 $3371

Additions include acquisitions

During 2008 the Company reclassified the goodwill related to the business units held for sale

Subsequent to the reclassification the Company recognized charge for those business units expected

to be divested at loss the charge included write-down of goodwill of $24 million

Other principally includes the effect of foreign currency translation and purchase price adjustments

related to prior-year acquisitions

In the fourth quarters of 2009 and 2008 the Company completed its annual impairment testing of

goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets During each year there were no events or circumstances

that would have indicated potential impairment

The impairment tests in 2009 and 2008 indicated that goodwill recorded for certain of the Companys

reporting units was impaired The Company recognized the non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for

goodwill of $262 million $180 million after tax and $456 million $438 million after tax for 2009 and 2008

respectively In 2009 the pre-tax impairment charge in the Plumbing Products segment relates to European

shower enclosure manufacturer the pre-tax impairment charge in the Other Specialty Products segment

relates to the Companys North American manufacturer of staple gun tackers and other fastening tools The

pre-tax impairment charge recognized in 2008 in the Cabinets and Related Products Plumbing Products

and Other Specialty Products segments related to three of the Companys United Kingdom manufacturers

and distributors in the Installation and Other Services segment the charge related to small installation

service business in North America The impairment charges in 2009 and 2008 reflect the anticipated long

term outlook for the reporting units including declining demand for certain products as well as decreased

operating profit margins
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Other indefinite-lived intangible assets were $196 million and $195 million at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively and principally included registered trademarks In 2008 the impairment test indicated that

the registered trademark for small installation service business in North America in the Installation and Other

Services segment and the registered trademark for North American business unit in the Other Specialty

Products segment were impaired due to changes in the anticipated long-term outlook for the business units

particularly in the new home construction market The Company recognized non-cash pre-tax impairment

charges for other indefinite-lived intangible assets of $1 million $7 million after tax in 2008

The carrying value of the Companys definite-lived intangible assets was $94 million at December 31
2009 net of accumulated amortization of $67 million and $104 million at December 31 2008 net of

accumulated amortization of $56 million and principally included customer relationships and non-compete

agreements with weighted average amortization period of 15 years in both 2009 and 2008 Amortization

expense related to the definite-lived intangible assets was $11 million $16 million and $15 million in 2009
2008 and 2007 respectively

At December 31 2009 amortization expense related to the definite-lived intangible assets during

each of the next five years was as follows 2010 $12 million 2011 $1 million 2012 $10 million

2013 $9 million and 2014 $9 million

OTHER ASSETS

In Millions
At December 31

2009 2008

Financial investments Note $242 $249

In-store displays net 44 63

Debenture expense 25 29

Notes receivable

Other 31 32

Total $345

In-store displays are amortized using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of three years
the Company recognized amortization expense related to in-store displays of $44 million $43 million and

$46 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Cash spent for displays was $26 million $37 million and

$43 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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ACCRUED LIABILITIES

In Millions
At December 31

2009 2008

Insurance $193 $198

Salaries wages and commissions 193 183

Warranty NoteS 109 119

Advertising and sales promotion 80 107

Interest 68 68

Employee retirement plans
36 34

Property payroll and other taxes 33 29

Dividends payable 27 85

Litigation
14

Plant closures 10

Other 90 98

Total $839 $945

DEBT
In Millions

At December 31

2009 2008

Notes and debentures

5.875% due July 15 2012 850 850

7.125% due Aug 15 2013 200 200

4.8%dueJune 15 2015 500 500

6.125% due Oct 32016 1000 1000

5.85% due Mar 15 2017 300 300

6.625%dueApr.152018 114 114

7.75%dueAug 2029 296 296

6.5%dueAug.152032 300 300

Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Notes due 2031 accreted

value
55 54

Floating-Rate Notes due Mar 12 2010 300 300

Other 53 72

3968 3986

Less Current portion 364 71

Total Long-term debt $3604 $3915

All of the notes and debentures above are senior indebtedness and other than the 6.625% notes due

2018 and the 7.75% notes due 2029 are redeemable at the Companys option

The Company retired $100 million of 5.75% notes on October 15 2008 the scheduled maturity date

In July 2001 the Company issued $1 .9 billion principal amount at maturity of Zero Coupon Convertible

Senior Notes due 2031 Old Notes resulting in gross proceeds of $750 million The issue price per Note
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was $394.45 per $1000 principal amount at maturity which represented yield to maturity of 3.125%

compounded semi-annually In December 2004 the Company completed an exchange of the outstanding

Old Notes for Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Notes Series due July 2031 New Notes or Notes The

Company will not pay interest in cash on the Notes prior to maturity except in certain circumstances

including possible contingent interest payments that are not expected to be material Holders of the Notes

have the option to require that the Notes be repurchased by the Company on July 20 2011 and every five

years thereafter Upon conversion of the Notes the Company will pay the principal return equal to the lesser

of the accreted value of the Notes in only cash and the conversion value as defined which will be

settled in cash or shares of Company common stock or combination of both at the option of the Company
The Notes are convertible if the average price of Company common stock for the 20 days immediately prior to

the conversion date exceeds 11 7% declining by 1/3% each year thereafter of the accreted value of the

Notes divided by the conversion rate of 12.7317 shares for each $1000 principal amount at maturity of the

Notes Notes also become convertible if the Companys credit rating is reduced to below investment grade or

if certain actions are taken by the Company The Company may at any time redeem all or part of the Notes at

their then accreted value On January 20 2007 holders of $1.8 billion 94 percent principal amount at

maturity of the Notes required the Company to repurchase their Notes at cash value of $825 million

credit rating agency i.e Moodys or Standard and Poors is an entity that assigns credit ratings for

issuers of certain types of debt obligations In December 2008 one rating agency reduced the credit rating on

the Companys debt to below investment grade as result the Notes are convertible on demand The

Company does not anticipate conversion of the Notes since based on the terms it would not currently be

profitable for holders of the Notes to exercise the option to convert the Notes

At both December31 2009 and 2008 there were outstanding $108 million principal amount at maturity

of Notes with an accreted value of $55 million and $54 million respectively which has been reclassified to

short-term debt

The Company adopted new accounting guidance regarding accounting for convertible debt instruments

that may be settled in cash upon conversion including partial cash settlement effective January 2009 The

adoption of this new guidance will have no impact on 2009 results the Company recorded $1 million

cumulative effect of accounting change as of January 2007 and the adoption had no impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

At the Companys request in late April 2009 the Company and its Bank Group modified the terms of its

Five-Year Revolving Credit Facility Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement which expires Feb
ruary 2011 This agreement allows for borrowings denominated in U.S dollars or European euros with

interest payable based upon various floating-rate options as selected by the Company After reviewing its

anticipated liquidity position the Company requested that the maximum amount the Company could borrow

under this facility be reduced to $1 .25 billion from $2.0 billion in addition the debt to total capitalization ratio

requirement has been increased from 60 percent to 65 percent The debt to total capitalization ratio and the

minimum net worth covenant have also been amended to allow the add-back if incurred of up to the first

$500 million of certain non-cash charges including goodwill and other intangible asset impairment charges
that would negatively impact shareholders equity The Company incurred approximately $2 million of fees

and expenses associated with the Amendment The Company if the facility is utilized will incur higher

borrowing costs as result of the Amendment

The Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement contains requirement for maintaining certain

level of net worth at December 31 2009 the Companys net worth exceeded such requirement by
$1 .0 billion Under the terms of the Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement any outstanding

Letters of Credit reduce the Companys borrowing capacity At December 31 2009 the Company had
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$83 million of unused Letters of Credit The Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement also contains

limitations on additional borrowings related to the debt to total capitalization requirements at December 31

2009 the Company had additional borrowing capacity subject to availability of up to $1 .2 billion In addition

at December 31 2009 the Company could absorb reduction to shareholders equity of approximately

$867 million and remain in compliance with the debt to total capitalization covenant

In order to borrow under the Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement there must not be any

defaults in the Companys covenants in the credit agreement i.e in addition to the two financial covenants

principally limitations on subsidiary debt negative pledge restrictions legal compliance requirements and

maintenance of insurance and the Companys representations and warranties in the credit agreement must

be true in all material respects on the date of borrowing i.e principally no material adverse change or

litigation likely to result in material adverse change in each case since December 31 2008 no material

ERISA or environmental non-compliance and no material tax deficiency

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company was in compliance with the requirements of the

Amended Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement

There were no borrowings under the Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement at December 31 2009 and

2008

At December 31 2009 the maturities of long-term debt during each of the next five years were

as follows 2010 $364 million 2011 $1 million 2012 $878 million 2013 $201 million and

2014 $2 million

Interest paid was $226 million $232 million and $262 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Companys 2005 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan the 2005 Plan provides for the issuance of

stock-based incentives in various forms to employees and non-employee Directors of the Company At

December 31 2009 outstanding stock-based incentives were in the form of long-term stock awards stock

options phantom stock awards and stock appreciation rights

Pre-tax compensation expense income and the income tax benefit related to these stock-based

incentives were as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Long-term stock awards $37 $43 $52

Stock options
25 36 49

Phantom stock awards and stock appreciation rights

Total

Income tax benefit $26 $27 $35

In 2009 the Company recognized $6 million of accelerated stock compensation expense for previously

granted stock awards and options related to the retirement from full-time employment of the Companys

Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors he will continue to serve as non-executive non-employee

Chairman of the Board of Directors

At December 31 2009 total of 12209180 shares of Company common stock were available under

the 2005 Plan for the granting of stock options and other long-term stock incentive awards
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Long-Term Stock Awards

Long-term stock awards are granted to key employees and non-employee Directors of the Company
and do not cause net share dilution inasmuch as the Company continues the practice of repurchasing and

retiring an equal number of shares on the open market

The Companys long-term stock award activity was as follows shares in millions

2009 2008 2007

Unvested stock award shares at January

Weighted average grant date fair value $26 $28 $27

Stock award shares granted

Weighted average grant date fair value $21 $30

Stock award shares vested

Weighted average grant date fair value $26 $26 $25

Stock award shares forfeited

Weighted average grant date fair value $24 $28 $28

Unvested stock award shares at December 31

Weighted average grant date fair value $21 $26 $28

At December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 there was $126 million $155 million and $175 million

respectively of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested stock awards such awards

had weighted average remaining vesting period of six years

The total market value at the vesting date of stock award shares which vested during 2009 2008 and

2007 was $16 million $30 million and $48 million respectively

Stock Options

Stock options are granted to key employees and non-employee Directors of the Company The exercise

price equals the market price of the Companys common stock at the grant date These options generally

become exercisable vest ratably over five years beginning on the first anniversary from the date of grant and

expire no later than 10 years after the grant date The 2005 Plan does not permit the granting of restoration

stock options except for restoration options resulting from options previously granted under the 1991 Plan

Restoration stock options become exercisable six months from the date of grant

The Company granted 5847700 of stock option shares including restoration stock option shares

during 2009 with grant date exercise price range of $8 to $14 per share During 2009 1518200 stock

option shares were forfeited including options that expired unexercised

61



MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION Continued

The Companys stock option activity was as follows shares in millions

2009 2008 2007

31 26 26

$25 $27 26

$8 $19 30

$26 million

$20 22

$22 $27 29

36 31 26

$23 $25 27

36 31 26

$23 $25 27

$31 million

21 17 14

$26 $26 25

7million

Aggregate intrinsic value is calculated using the Companys stock price at each respective date less the

exercise price grant date price multiplied by the number of shares

At December31 2009 2008 and 2007 there was $41 million $59 million and $73 million respectively

of unrecognized compensation expense using the Black-Scholes option pricing model at the grant date

related to unvested stock options such options had weighted average remaining vesting period of three

years

The Company received cash of $60 million in 2007 for the exercise of stock options

The weighted average grant date fair value of option shares granted and the assumptions used to

estimate those values using Black-Scholes option pricing model was as follows

2009 2008
________

Weighted average grant date fair value 2.28 3.72

Risk-free interest rate 2.60% 3.25%

Dividend yield
3.70% 4.96%

Volatility factor 39.18% 32.00%

Expected option life years years

Option shares outstanding January

Weighted average exercise price

Option shares granted including restoration options

Weighted average exercise price

Option shares exercised

Aggregate intrinsic value on date of exercise

Weighted average exercise price

Option shares forfeited

Weighted average exercise price

Option shares outstanding December 31

Weighted average exercise price

Weighted average remaining option term in years

Option shares vested and expected to vest December 31

Weighted average exercise price

Aggregate intrinsic value

Weighted average remaining option term in years

Option shares exercisable vested December 31

Weighted average exercise price

Aggregate intrinsic value

Weighted average remaining option term in years

2007

8.92

4.74%

3.00%

31 .80%

years
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The following table summarizes information for stock option shares outstanding and exercisable at

December 31 2009 shares in millions

Option Shares Outstanding Option Shares Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Range of Number of Option Exercise Number of Exercise

Prices Shares Term Price Shares Price

8-23 18 Years $16 $20

$24-28 Years $27 $27

$29-32 11 Years $30 $30

$33-38 Years $34 $34

8-38 36 Years $23 21 $26

Phantom Stock Awards and Stock Appreciation Rights SARs
The Company grants phantom stock awards and SARs to certain non-U.S employees

Phantom stock awards are linked to the value of the Companys common stock on the date of grant and

are settled in cash upon vesting typically over 10 years The Company accounts for phantom stock awards

as liability-based awards the compensation expense is
initially

measured as the market price of the

Companys common stock at the grant date and is recognized over the vesting period The liability is

remeasured and adjusted at the end of each reporting period until the awards are fully-vested and paid to the

employees The Company recognized expense income of $3 million $2 million and $2 million related to

the valuation of phantom stock awards for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively In 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company granted 318920 shares 234800 shares and 130000 shares respectively of phantom stock

awards with an aggregate fair value of $3 million $5 million and $4 million respectively and paid $1 million

$2 million and $4 million of cash in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively to settle phantom stock awards

SARs are linked to the value of the Companys common stock on the date of grant and are settled in cash

upon exercise The Company accounts for SARs using the fair value method which requires outstanding

SARs to be classified as liability-based awards and valued using Black-Scholes option pricing model at the

grant date such fair value is recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period typically five

years The
liability

is remeasured and adjusted at the end of each reporting period until the SARs are exercised

and payment is made to the employees or the SARs expire The Company recognized expense income of

$4 million $3 million and $5 million related to the valuation of SARs for 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

During 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company granted SARs for 438200 shares 597200 shares and

521100 shares respectively with an aggregate fair value of $1 million $2 million and $4 million in 2009
2008 and 2007 respectively

Information related to phantom stock awards and SARs was as follows in millions

Phantom Stock Stock Appreciation
Awards Rights

At December 31 At December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

Accrued compensation cost liability $5 $4 $4

Unrecognized compensation cost $5 $3 $3

Equivalent common shares
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The Company sponsors qualified defined-benefit and defined-contribution retirement plans for most of

its employees In addition to the Companys qualified defined-benefit pension plans the Company has

unfunded non-qualified defined-benefit pension plans covering certain employees which provide for benefits

in addition to those provided by the qualified pension plans Substantially all salaried employees participate in

non-contributory defined-contribution retirement plans to which payments are determined annually by the

Organization and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors Aggregate charges to earnings under

the Companys defined-benefit and defined-contribution retirement plans were $63 million and $35 million in

2009 $38 million and $30 million in 2008 and $44 million and $47 million in 2007 respectively

In March 2009 based on managements recommendation the Board of Directors approved plan to

freeze all future benefit accruals under substantially all of the Companys domestic qualified and non-qualified

defined-benefit pension plans The freeze was effective January 2010 As result of this action the

liabilities for the plans impacted by the freeze were remeasured and the Company recognized curtailment

charge of $8 million in the first quarter of 2009
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Changes in projected benefit

obligation

Projected benefit obligation at January

$758

Service cost

Interest cost 45

Participant contributions

Plan amendments

Actuarial loss gain net 27

Foreign currency exchange

Disposition

Recognized curtailment loss

Benefit payments 37

Projected benefit obligation at

December 31

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January

Actual return on plan assets

Foreign currency exchange

Company contributions

Participant contributions

Disposition

Expenses other

Benefit payments

Fair value of plan assets at

December 31
____

Funded status at December 31
____

Amounts in the Companys consolidated

Accrued liabilities

Deferred income taxes and other ____

Total net
liability

MASCO CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS Continued

Changes in the projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and the funded status of the

Companys defined-benefit pension plans were as follows in millions

2009 2008

_______ ___________
Qualified Non-QualifiedQualified Non-Qualified

$147 $748 $138

14

46

24

38

37

$152 $758 $147

$634

164

29
10

37

$147

$806

$414

74

18

37

$474 $414
____

$332 $1 52 $344
____

balance sheets were as follows in millions

At December 31 2009 At December 31 2008

Qualified Non-Qualified Qualified Non-Qualified

10 10
329 142 342 137

$332 $1 52 $344 $1 47
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Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income before income taxes were as follows in millions

At December 31 2009 At December 31 2008

Qualified Non-Qualified Qualified Non-Qualified

Net loss $287 $20 $319 $11

Net transition obligation

Net prior service cost

Total $286 $20 $322 $20

Information for defined-benefit pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan

assets was as follows in millions

At December 31

2009 2008

Qualified Non-Qualified Qualified Non-Qualified

Projected benefit obligation $797 $152 $753 $147

Accumulated benefit obligation $793 $152 $661 $139

Fair value of plan assets $466 $408

The projected benefit obligation was in excess of plan assets for all of the Companys qualified defined-

benefit pension plans at December31 2009 and for all except one of the Companys qualified defined-benefit

pension plans at December 31 2008

Net periodic pension cost for the Companys defined-benefit pension plans was as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Qualified Non-Qualified Qualified Non-Qualified Qualified Non-Qualified

Service cost $14 17

Interest cost 45 46 44

Expected return on plan

assets 29 48 49

Recognized prior service

cost

Recognized curtailment

loss

Recognized settlement

loss

Recognized net loss 12

Net periodic pension

cost $40 $15 $14 $13 $17 $12

The Company expects to recognize $9 million of pre-tax net loss from accumulated other compre

hensive income into net periodic pension cost in 2010 related to its defined-benefit pension plans
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Plan Assets

The Companys qualified defined-benefit pension plan weighted average asset allocation which is

based upon fair value was as follows

At December 31

2009 2008

Equity securities 71 81%
Debt securities 26% 13%
Other 3% 6%

Total 100% 100%

The investment objectives of the Companys qualified defined-benefit pension plans are to earn

return net of fees greater than or equal to the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets to diversify

the portfolio among various asset classes with the goal of reducing volatility of return and reducing principal

risk and to maintain liquidity sufficient to meet Plan obligations Long-term target allocations are equity

securities 70% debt securities 25% and other investments 5%
Plan assets included 1.2 million shares and .4 million shares respectively of Company common stock

valued at $16 million at both December 31 2009 and 2008

The Companys qualified defined-benefit pension plans have adopted accounting guidance that defines

fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements Accounting guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Following is description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value There

have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31 2009

Common and preferred stocks debt securities and short-term and other investments Valued at the

closing price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded

Limited Partnerships Valued based on an estimated fair value There is no active trading market for

these investments and they are for the most part illiquid Due to the significant unobservable inputs the fair

value measurements are Level input

The methods described above may produce fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net

realizable value or reflective of future fair values Furthermore while the Company believes its valuation

methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants the use of different methodologies or

assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in different fair value

measurement at the reporting date
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The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the qualified defined-benefit pension

plan assets at fair value as of December 31 2009 in millions

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31
2009

Level Level Level Total

Common and preferred stocks $267 $17 $284

Limited Partnerships
52 52

Debt securities 97 25 122

Short-term and cther investments 16 16

Total assets at fair value $380 $42 $52 $474

The table below sets forth summary of changes in the fair value of the qualified defined-benefit pension

plan level assets for the year ended December 31 2009 in millions

Year Ended
December 31 2009

Limited Partnerships

Balance beginning of year $48

Purchases sales issuances and settlements net

Unrealized losses

Balance end of year
52

Assumptions

Major assumptions used in accounting for the Companys defined-benefit pension plans were as

follows

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Discount rate for obligations
5.80% 6.10% 6.25%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.25%

Rate of compensation increase 2.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Discount rate for net periodic pension cost 6.10% 6.25% 5.50%

The discount rate for obligations was based upon the expected duration of each defined-benefit pension

plans liabilities matched to the December 31 2009 Citigroup Pension Discount Curve Such rates for the

Companys defined-benefit pension plans ranged from 2.60 percent to 6.25 percent with the most significant

portion of the liabilities having discount rate for obligations of 5.60 percent or higher at December 31 2009

The Company determined the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets by reviewing an analysis

of expected and historical rates of return of various asset classes based upon the current and long-term

target asset allocation of the plan assets The measurement date for the defined-benefit plans was

December 31

Other

The Company sponsors certain post-retirement benefit plans that provide medical dental and life

insurance coverage for eligible retirees and dependents in the United States based upon age and length of

service The aggregate present value of the unfunded accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation was

$13 million and $12 million respectively at December 31 2009 and 2008
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Cash Flows

At December 31 2009 the Company expected to contribute approximately $20 million to $25 million to

its qualified defined-benefit pension plans to meet ERISA requirements in 2010 The Company also expected

to pay benefits of $3 million and $10 million to participants of its unfunded foreign and non-qualified

domestic defined-benefit pension plans respectively in 2010

At December 31 2009 the benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and in aggregate

for the five years thereafter relating to the Companys defined-benefit pension plans were as follows in

millions

Qualified Non-Qualified
Plans Plans

2010 35 $10

2011 36 $10

2012 37 $11

2013 39 $12

2014 40 $11

2015-2019 $222 $58

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

In July 2007 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the repurchase for retirement of up to

50 million shares of the Companys common stock in open-market transactions or otherwise At Decem
ber 31 2009 the Company had remaining authorization to repurchase up to 30 million shares During 2009
the Company repurchased and retired two million shares of Company common stock for cash aggregating

$1 million to offset the dilutive impact of the 2009 grant of two million shares of long-term stock awards The

Company repurchased and retired nine million common shares in 2008 and 31 million common shares in

2007 for cash aggregating $160 million and $857 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively

On the basis of amounts paid declared cash dividends per common share were $.46 $30 in 2009
$.925 $93 in 2008 and $91 $.92 in 2007 respectively In 2009 the Company decreased its quarterly cash

dividend to $.075 per common share from $.235 per common share

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income attributable to Masco Corporation were

as follows in millions

At December 31

2009 2008

Cumulative translation adjustments 546 524

Unrealized gain on marketable securities net 25

Unrecognized prior service cost and net loss net 205 219

Accumulated other comprehensive income 366 308
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The unrealized gain on marketable securities net is reported net of income tax expense of $14 million

and $1 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The unrecognized prior service cost and net

loss net is reported net of income tax benefit of $105 million and $125 million at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companys reportable segments are as follows

Cabinets and Related Products principally includes assembled and ready-to-assemble kitchen

and bath cabinets home office workstations entertainment centers storage products bookcases and

kitchen utility products

Plumbing Products principally includes faucets plumbing fittings and valves showerheads and

hand showers bathtubs and shower enclosures and spas

Installation and Other Services principally includes the sale installation and distribution of insu

lation and other building products

Decorative Architectural Products principally includes paints and stains and cabinet door

window and other hardware

Other Specialty Products principally includes windows window frame components and patio

doors staple gun tackers staples and other fastening tools

The above products and services are sold to the home improvement and new home construction

markets through mass merchandisers hardware stores home centers builders distributors and other

outlets for consumers and contractors

The Companys operations are principally located in North America and Europe The Companys country

of domicile is the United States of America

Corporate assets consist primarily of real property equipment cash and cash investments and other

investments

The Companys segments are based upon similarities in products and services and represent the

aggregation of operating units for which financial information is regularly evaluated by the Companys

corporate operating executives in determining resource allocation and assessing performance and is

periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors Accounting policies for the segments are the same as

those for the Company The Company primarily evaluates performance based upon operating profit loss

and other than general corporate expense allocates specific corporate overhead to each segment The

evaluation of segment operating profit also excludes the charge for defined-benefit plan curtailment the

charge for litigation settlements the accelerated stock compensation expense and the loss gain on

corporate fixed assets net
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Information about the Company by segment and geographic area was as follows in millions

Net Sales 12345
2009 2008 2007

The Companys operations by segment were

Cabinets and Related Products

Plumbing Products

Installation and Other Services

Decorative Architectural Products

Other Specialty Products

Unallocated amounts principally related to corporate assets

Total

Assets at December 31 1112
2007 2009 2008 2007

Depreciation and

Amortization5

2009 2008 2007

Operating Profit LossX56

2009 2008

The Companys operations by segment

were
Cabinets and Related Products $1674 $2276 2829 64 336 $1382 $1518 1769
Plumbing Products 2564 3002 3272 237 110 271 1815 1877 2336
Installation and Other Services 1256 1861 2615 131 46 176 2339 2454 2622
Decorative Architectural Products 1714 1629 1768 375 299 384 871 878 900

Other Specialty Products 584 716 929 199 124 67 1197 441 1920

Total $7792 $9484 $11413 $218 $243 $1234 $7604 $8168 9547

The Companys operations by

geographic area were

North America $6135 $7482 9271 93 $493 $1008 $6113 $6648 7089
International principally Europe 1657 2002 2142 125 250 226 1491 1520 2458

Total as above $7792 $9484 $11413 218 243 1234 7604 8168 9547

General corporate expense net 140 144 181
Charge for defined-benefit curtailment

Charge for litigation settlements

Accelerated stock compensation expense 10
Loss gain on corporate fixed assets net

Operating profit as reported 55 90 1061
Other income expense net 206 283 185

Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes $151 $193 876

Corporate assets 1571 1315 1360

Total assets $9175 $9483 $10907

Property Additions5

2009 2008 2007

30

47

30

$50 $70 $84 $70 $67
72 60 70 72 73

45 70 35 23 27

14 11 18 18 18

10 29 28 33 30

121 191 240 235 216 215

17 16 16

$193 $244 $252 $232 $231$122
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Included in net sales were export sales from the U.S of $277 million $275 million and $291 million in

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Intra-company sales between segments represented approximately three percent of net sales in 2009

one percent of net sales in 2008 and two percent of net sales in 2007

Included in net sales were sales to one customer of $2053 million $2058 million and $2403 million in

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Such net sales were included in the following segments Cabinets and

Related Products Plumbing Products Decorative Architectural Products and Other Specialty Products

Net sales from the Companys operations in the U.S were $5952 million $7150 million and

$8910 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Net sales operating profit loss property additions and depreciation and amortization expense for

2009 2008 and 2007 excluded the results of businesses reported as discontinued operations in 2009

2008 and 2007

Included in segment operating profit loss for 2009 were impairment charges for goodwill as follows

Plumbing Products $39 million Other Specialty Products $223 million Included in segment oper

ating profit loss for 2008 were impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets as follows

Cabinets and Related Products $59 million Plumbing Products $203 million Installation and Other

Services $52 million and Other Specialty Products $153 million Included in segment operating

profit for 2007 were impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets as follows Plumbing

Products $69 million and Other Specialty Products $50 million

General corporate expense net included those expenses not specifically attributable to the Companys

segments

During 2009 the Company recognized curtailment loss related to the plan to freeze all future benefit

accruals beginning January 2010 under substantially all of the Companys domestic qualified and

non-qualified defined-benefit pension plans See Note to the consolidated financial statements

The charge for litigation settlement in 2009 relates to business unit in the Cabinets and Related

Products segment The charge for litigation settlement in 2008 relates to business unit in the

Installation and Other Services segment

10 See Note to the consolidated financial statements

11 Long-lived assets of the Companys operations in the U.S and Europe were $4628 million and

$690 million $4887 million and $770 million and $4987 million and $1 477 million at December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

12 Segment assets for 2009 excluded the assets of businesses reported as discontinued operations

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

Other net which is included in other income expense net was as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Income from cash and cash investments 22 $37

Other interest income

Income from financial investments net Note 49

Other items net 17 22

Total other net $29 $3 $95

Other items net included realized foreign currency transaction gains losses of $17 million $29 million

and $9 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively as well as other miscellaneous items
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Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes

U.S

Foreign _____ _____

Provision benefit for income taxes on

operations

Currently payable

U.S Federal

State and local

Foreign

Deferred

U.S Federal

State and local

Foreign _____ _____

Deferred tax assets at December 31

Receivables

Inventories

Other assets including stock-based

Accrued liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Capital loss carryforward

Net operating loss carryforward

Tax credit carryforward _____ _____

Valuation allowance
_____ _____

Deferred tax liabilities at December 31

Property and equipment

Investment in foreign subsidiaries

Intangibles

Other principally notes payable _____ _____

Net deferred tax liability at December 31

In Millions
2009 2008 2007

loss income from continuing

compensation

$301 $606

150 197 270

$151 $193 $876

29 $263

12 20 33

45 68 82

64 47 18
11

11 11

49 $134

19 18

31 30

135 141

171 137

200 218

63 22

625 572

43 15
582 557

324 323

10

398 414

32 47

763 794

$181 $237

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the net deferred tax liability consisted of net short-term deferred tax

assets included in prepaid expenses and other of $203 million and $190 million respectively and net long

term deferred tax liabilities included in deferred income taxes and other of $384 million and $427 million

respectively
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valuation allowance of $43 million and $15 million was recorded at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively on certain net operating loss carryforward and other deferred tax asset balances that the

Company believes will not be realized in future periods primarily due to recent history of losses of certain

subsidiaries

Of the $582 million of deferred tax assets recorded at December 31 2009 net of valuation allowance

$432 million is anticipated to be realized through the future reversal of existing taxable temporary differences

recorded as deferred tax liability and $150 million is anticipated to be realized through future gains from

investments and other identified tax-planning strategies including the potential sale of certain operating

assets and through capital gains in the carryback period As result valuation allowance was not recorded

on these deferred tax assets

Of the deferred tax asset related to the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards at December 31
2009 and 2008 $65 million and $9 million will expire between 2018 and 2029 and $4 million and $13 million is

unlimited respectively

$9 million and $10 million deferred tax liability has been provided at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively on the undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are intended to be

repatriated in the foreseeable future tax provision has not been provided at December 31 2009 for

U.S income taxes or additional foreign withholding taxes on approximately $100 million of

undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries that are considered to be permanently reinvested It

is not practicable to determine the amount of deferred tax liability on such earnings as the actual U.S tax

would depend on income tax laws and circumstances at the time of distribution

reconciliation of the U.S Federal statutory rate to the provision benefit for income taxes on loss

income from continuing operations was as follows

2009 2008 2007

U.S federal statutory rate 35% 35% 35%

State and local taxes net of U.S Federal tax benefit

Lower taxes on foreign earnings 11 11

Foreign unrecognized tax benefits

Change in U.S and foreign taxes on distributed and

undistributed foreign earnings including the impact of foreign

tax credit 35

Goodwill impairment charges providing no tax benefit 10 73

Domestic production deduction

Change in foreign tax rates

Other net

Effective tax rate 33% 69% 39%

During 2009 the Company reversed an accrual for unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $8 million

related to withholding tax issue from formerly held European company due to recent favorable court

decision which resulted in decrease in the effective tax rate In addition the Company recorded pre-tax

impairment charges for goodwill of $262 million $180 million after-tax in 2009 that increased the effective tax

rate as portion of the impairment charges did not provide tax benefit Excluding the effects of these items

the Companys effective tax rate in 2009 was approximately 37 percent
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During 2008 the Company made substantial repatriation of low-taxed earnings from certain foreign

subsidiaries to fully utilize the existing foreign tax credit carryforward by December 31 2008 Although the

majority of the current U.S tax on this substantial repatriation was offset by the foreign tax credit carryforward

the Companys tax expense was increased by approximately $65 million Also during 2008 the Company

recorded pre-tax impairment charges for goodwill and other intangibles of $467 million $445 million after-tax

that significantly increased the Companys effective tax rate as the majority of the impairment charges did not

provide tax benefit Excluding the effects of the substantial repatriation of low-taxed earnings and the

impairment charges the Companys effective tax rate in 2008 was approximately 33 percent

Income taxes paid were $25 million $1 17 million and $363 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Effective January 2007 the Company adopted accounting guidance regarding accounting for

uncertainty in income taxes and recorded the cumulative effect of adopting such guidance as reduction

to beginning retained earnings of $26 million reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of

unrecognized tax benefits including related interest and penalties is as follows

In Millions

Unrecognized Interest and

Tax Benefits Penalties Total

Balance at January 2008 $76 $19 95

Current year tax positions

Additions

Prior year tax positions

Additions 11 11

Reductions

Settlements with tax authorities

Lapse of applicable statute of limitations

Interest and penalties recognized in income tax

expense

Balance at December 31 2008 $81 $25 $106

Current year tax positions

Additions

Reductions

Prior year tax positions

Additions

Reductions

Settlements with tax authorities 13 16
Lapse of applicable statute of limitations

Interest and penalties recognized in income tax

expense

Balance at December 31 2009 $65 $21 $86

If recognized $44 million and $54 million of the unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively net of any U.S Federal tax benefit would impact the Companys effective tax rate

At December 31 2009 and 2008 $87 and $105 million of the total unrecognized tax benefits including

related interest and penalties is recorded in deferred income taxes and other $8 and $7 million is recorded in

accrued liabilities and $9 and $6 million is recorded in other assets respectively
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S Federal jurisdiction and various local state and foreign

jurisdictions The Company continues to participate in the Compliance Assurance Program CAPCAP is

real-time audit of the U.S Federal income tax return that allows the Internal Revenue Service IRS working

in conjunction with the Company to determine tax return compliance with the U.S Federal tax law prior to

filing the return This program provides the Company with greater certainty about its tax liability for given year

within months rather than years of
filing

its annual tax return and greatly reduces the need for recording

U.S Federal unrecognized tax benefits The IRS has completed their examination of the Companys

consolidated U.S Federal tax returns through 2008 With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject

to state or foreign income tax examinations on filed returns for years before 2000

As result of tax audit closings settlements and the expiration of applicable statutes of limitations in

various jurisdictions within the next 12 months the Company anticipates that it is reasonably possible the

liability
for unrecognized tax benefits could be reduced by approximately $9 million

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Reconciliations of the numerators and denominators used in the computations of basic and diluted

earnings per common share were as follows in millions

2009 2008 2007

Numerator basic and diluted

Loss income from continuing operations $1 40 $366 502

Allocation to unvested restricted stock awards 12

Loss income from continuing operations attributable to common
shareholders 143 373 490

Loss from discontinued operations net 43 25 116

Net loss income available to common shareholders $1 86 $398 374

Denominator

Basic common shares based on weighted average 351 353 369

Add

Contingent common shares

Stock option dilution

Diluted common shares 351 353 371

Effective January 2009 the Company adopted accounting guidance regarding determining whether

instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are participating securities This new accounting

guidance clarifies that share-based payment awards that entitle their holders to receive non-forfeitable

dividends prior to vesting should be considered participating securities The Company has granted restricted

stock awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends on unvested shares such unvested restricted

stock awards are considered participating securities As participating securities the unvested shares are

required to be included in the calculation of the Companys basic earnings per common share using the

two-class method The two-class method of computing earnings per common share is an allocation

method that calculates earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating security

according to dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings Unvested restricted stock

awards were previously included in the Companys diluted share calculation using the treasury stock method

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company allocated dividends to the unvested
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restricted stock awards participating securities in 2007 the Company also allocated income to the

unvested stock awards

At December31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company did not include any common shares related to the

Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Notes Notes in the calculation of diluted earnings per common share as

the price of the Companys common stock at December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 did not exceed the

equivalent accreted value of the Notes

Additionally 36 million common shares 31 million common shares and 19 million common shares for

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively related to stock options were excluded from the computation of diluted

earnings per common share due to their antidilutive effect

Common shares outstanding included on the Companys balance sheet and for the calculation of

earnings per common share do not include unvested stock awards nine million and eight million common
shares at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively shares outstanding for legal requirements included all

common shares that have voting rights including unvested stock awards

OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The Company is subject to lawsuits and pending or asserted claims with respect to matters generally

arising in the ordinary course of business

Early in 2003 suit was brought against the Company and number of its insulation installation

companies in the federal court in Atlanta Georgia alleging that certain practices violate provisions of federal

and state antitrust laws The plaintiff publicized the lawsuit with press release and stated in that release that

the U.S Department of Justice was investigating the business practices of the Companys insulation

installation companies Although the Company was unaware of any investigation at that time the Company

was later advised that an investigation had been commenced but was subsequently closed without any

enforcement action recommended Two additional lawsuits were subsequently brought in Virginia making

similar claims under the antitrust laws Both of these lawsuits have since been dismissed without any

payment or requirement for any change in business practices

During the second half of 2004 the same counsel who commenced the initial action in Atlanta filed six

additional lawsuits on behalf of several of Mascos competitors in the insulation installation business The

plaintiffs then dismissed all of these lawsuits and represented by the same counsel filed another action in the

same federal court as putative class action against the Company number of its insulation installation

companies and certain of their suppliers All of the Companys suppliers who were co-defendants in this

lawsuit have settled this case On February 2009 the federal court in Atlanta issued an Opinion in which

the Court certified class of 377 insulation contractors In its Opinion the Court also ruled on various other

motions Two additional lawsuits seeking class action status and alleging anticompetitive conduct were filed

against the Company and number of its insulation suppliers One of these lawsuits was filed in Florida state

court and has been dismissed by the court with prejudice The other lawsuit was filed in federal court in

northern California and was subsequently transferred to federal court in Atlanta Georgia motion for

judgment on the pleadings is pending in this action The Company is vigorously defending the pending cases

Based upon the advice of its outside counsel the Company believes that the conduct of the Company and its

insulation installation companies which has been the subject of the above-described lawsuits has not

violated any antitrust laws The Company is unable at this time to reliably estimate any potential liability which

might occur from an adverse judgment There cannot be any assurance that the Company will ultimately

prevail in the remaining lawsuits or if unsuccessful that the ultimate liability would not be material and would
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not have material adverse effect on its businesses or the methods used by its insulation installation

companies in doing business

In 2004 the Company learned that European governmental authorities were investigating possible

anticompetitive business practices relating to the plumbing and heating industries in Europe The investi

gations involve number of European companies including certain of the Companys European manufac

turing divisions and number of other large businesses As part of its broadened governance activities the

Company with the assistance of its outside counsel completed review of the competition practices of its

European divisions including those in the plumbing and heating industries and the Company is cooperating

fully with the European governmental authorities Several private antitrust lawsuits have been filed in the

United States as putative class actions against among others the Company and certain of the other

companies being investigated relating to the defendants plumbing operations These appear to be an

outgrowth of the investigations being conducted by European governmental authorities These lawsuits have

been dismissed Based upon the advice of its outside counsel the review of the competition practices of its

European divisions referred to above and other factors the Company believes that it will not incur material

liability as result of the matters that are the subject of these investigations

Warranty

Certain of the Companys products and product finishes and services are covered by warranty to be

free from defects in material and workmanship for periods ranging from one year to the life of the product At

the time of sale the Company accrues warranty liability
for estimated costs to provide products parts or

services to repair or replace products in satisfaction of warranty obligations The Companys estimate of costs

to service its warranty obligations is based upon historical experience and expectations of future conditions

To the extent that the Company experiences any changes in warranty claim activity or costs associated with

servicing those claims its warranty liability is adjusted accordingly

Changes in the Companys warranty liability were as follows in millions

2009 2008

Balance at January $119 $133

Accruals for warranties issued during the year 32 42

Accruals related to pre-existing warranties

Settlements made in cash or kind during the year 44 53
Other net including currency translation

Balance at December 31 $119

Investments

With respect to the Companys investments in private equity funds the Company had at December31

2009 commitments to contribute up to $37 million of additional capital to such funds representing the

Companys aggregate capital commitment to such funds less capital contributions made to date The

Company is contractually obligated to make additional capital contributions to certain of its private equity

funds upon receipt of capital call from the private equity fund The Company has no control over when or if

the capital calls will occur Capital calls are funded in cash and generally result in an increase in the carrying

value of the Companys investment in the private equity fund when paid
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Other Matters

The Company enters into contracts which include reasonable and customary indemnifications that are

standard for the industries in which it operates Such indemnifications include customer claims against

builders for issues relating to the Companys products and workmanship In conjunction with divestitures and

other transactions the Company occasionally provides reasonable and customary indemnifications relating

to various items including the enforceability of trademarks legal and environmental issues provisions for

sales returns and asset valuations The Company has never had to pay material amount related to these

indemnifications and evaluates the probability that amounts may be incurred and appropriately records an

estimated liability when probable

INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION iJNATJDITED

In Millions Except Per Common Share Data

Total
Quarters Ended

Year December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

2009

Net sales $7792 $1898 $2084 $2013 $1797

Gross profit $2018 495 567 543 413

Loss income from continuing

operations 140 173 51 67 85
Net income loss 183 185 28 55 81

Loss earnings per common share

Basic

Loss income from continuing

operations .41 .49 .14 .19 .24

Net loss income .53 .53 .08 .15 .23

Diluted

Loss income from continuing

operations .41 .49 .14 .19 .24

Net loss income .53 .53 .08 .15 .23

2008

Net sales $9484 $1956 $2501 $2610 $2417

Gross profit $2359 397 647 694 621

Loss income from continuing

operations 366 504 40 74 24

Net loss income 391 508 33 82

Loss earnings per common share

Basic

Loss income from continuing

operations 1.06 1.44 .11 .20 .06

Net loss income .13 .45 .09 .23

Diluted

Loss income from continuing

operations 1.06 1.44 .11 .20 .06

Net loss income 1.13 1.45 .09 .23

Loss earnings per common share amounts for the four quarters of 2009 and 2008 may not total to the

earnings per common share amounts for the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 due to the allocation

of income to unvested stock awards
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The first second and third quarters of 2009 and the four quarters and full-year of 2008 have been recast

to reflect the Companys sale of business unit discontinued operation in the fourth quarter of 2009

Fourth quarter 2009 loss from continuing operations and net loss include non-cash impairment charges

for goodwill of $180 million after tax $262 million pre-tax Income loss from continuing operations and net

loss income include after-tax impairment charges for financial investments of $2 million $3 million pre-tax

and $5 million $7 million pre-tax in the first and second quarters of 2009 respectively Net loss income for

2009 includes after-tax income loss net related to discontinued operations of $4 million $4 million pre

tax $1 million $4 million pre-tax $23 million $24 million pre-tax and $1 million $1 million pre-tax

in the first second third and fourth quarters of 2009 respectively

Fourth quarter 2008 loss from continuing operations and net loss include non-cash impairment charges

for goodwill and other intangible assets of $445 million after tax $467 million pre-tax Loss income from

continuing operations and net loss income include after-tax impairment charges for financial investments of

$16 million $26 million pre-tax $2 million $3 million pre-tax $1 million $1 million pre-tax and $18 million

$28 million pre-tax in the first second third and fourth quarters of 2008 respectively Net loss income for

2008 includes after-tax loss income net related to discontinued operations of $22 million $42 million pre
tax $8 million $7 million pre-tax $7 million $5 million pre-tax and $4 million $7 million pre-tax in the

first second third and fourth quarters of 2008 respectively
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted

an evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures as required by Exchange Act Rules 3a1 5b and

5d-1 5b as of December 31 2009 Based on this evaluation the Companys management including the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures were effective

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined

in Rules 3a-1 5f and Sd-i 5f under the Exchange Act is included in this Report under Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data under the heading Managements Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting The report of our independent registered public accounting firm is also included under

Item under the heading Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company continued phased deployment of new Enterprise Resource Planning ERP systems at

Masco Builder Cabinet Group and Masco Contractor Services two of the Companys larger business units

These new systems represent process improvement initiatives and are not in response to any identified

deficiency or weakness in the Companys internal control over financial reporting However these business

process initiatives are significant in scale and complexity and will result in modifications to certain internal

controls These systems are designed in part to enhance the overall system of internal control over financial

reporting through further automation and integration of various business processes

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information regarding executive officers required by this Item is set forth as Supplementary Item

at the end of Part hereof pursuant to Instruction to Item 401b of Regulation S-K The Companys Code of

Business Ethics applies to all employees officers and directors including the Principal Executive Officer and

Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer and is posted on the Companys website at

www.masco.com Other information required by this Item will be contained in the Companys definitive Proxy

Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before April 30 2010 and such

information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information required by this Item will be contained in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement for its

2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before April 30 2010 and such information is

incorporated herein by reference
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Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters

Information required by this Item will be contained in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement for its

2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before April 30 2010 and such information is

incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information required by this Item will be contained in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement for its

2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before April 30 2010 and such information is

incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this Item will be contained in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement for its

2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed on or before April 30 2010 and such information is

incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Listing of Documents

Financial Statements The Companys consolidated financial statements included in Item

hereof as required at December 31 2009 and 2008 and for the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 consist of the following

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule

Financial Statement Schedule of the Company appended hereto as required for the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 consists of the following

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Exhibits

See separate Exhibit Index beginning on page 86
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

MASCO CORPORATION

By Is JOHN SZNEWAJS

John Sznewajs

Vice President Treasurer and Chief Financial

Officer

February 16 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Principal Executive Officer

/s TIMOTHY WADHAMS President Chief Executive Officer and

Timothy Wadhams Director

Principal Financial Officer

/5/ JOHN SZNEWAJS Vice President Treasurer and Chief

John Sznewajs
Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

/s WILLIAM ANDERSON Vice President Controller

William Anderson

/s DENNIS ARCHER Director

Dennis Archer

/s THOMAS DENOMME Director

Thomas Denomme

/5/ ANTHONY EARLEY JR Director February 16 2010

Anthony Earley Jr

/s VERNE ISTOCK Director

Verne Istock

/s DAVID JOHNSTON Director

David Johnston

/s MICHAEL LOSH Director

Michael Losh

/s RICHARD MANOOGIAN Chairman

Richard Manoogian

/s LISA PAYNE Director

Lisa Payne

/s MARY ANN VAN LOKEREN Director

Mary Ann Van Lokeren
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SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

In Millions

Column Column Column Column Column

Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and Other End of

Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts

deducted from accounts receivable

in the balance sheet

2009 $75 $30 $1a $29b $75

2008 $85 $37 $2a $45b $75

2007 $84 $27 $1a $25b $85

Allowance for deferred tax assets

2009 $28 $- $- $43

2008 $9 $6 $- $-

2007 $- $- $9

Allowance of companies acquired and companies disposed of net

Deductions representing uncollectible accounts written off less recoveries of accounts written off in

prior years
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated By Reference

Exhibit Filing Filed

No Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Date Herewith

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Masco 2005 10-K 3.i 03/02/2006

Corporation and amendments thereto

3.ii Bylaws of Masco Corporation as Amended and 8-K 3.ii 06/06/2007

Restated June 2007

4.a.i Indenture dated as of December 1982 between 2006 10-K 4.a.i 02/27/2007

Masco Corporation and Bank of New York

Trust Company N.A as successor trustee under

agreement originally with Morgan Guaranty

Trust Company of New York as Trustee and

Directors resolutions establishing Masco

Corporations

71/s% Debentures Due August 15 2013 2008 10-K 4.a.ii 02/17/2009

ii 6.625% Debentures Due April 15 2018 and 2008 10-K 4.a.iii 02/17/2009

iii 73/4% Debentures Due August 2029

4.a.ii Agreement of Appointment and Acceptance of

Successor Trustee dated as of July 25 1994

among Masco Corporation Morgan Guaranty

Trust Company of New York and The First

National Bank of Chicago

4.a.iii Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 26 1994

between Masco Corporation and Bank of New

York Trust Company N.A as successor trustee

under agreement originally with The First National

Bank of Chicago as Trustee

4.b.i Indenture dated as of February 12 2001 between 2006 10-K 4.b.i 02/27/2007

Masco Corporation and Bank of New York

Trust Company N.A as successor trustee under

agreement originally with Bank One

Trust Company National Association as Trustee

and Directors Resolutions establishing Masco

Corporations

5/s% Notes Due July 15 2012 2007 10-K 4.b.ii 02/22/2008

ii 61/2% Notes Due August 15 2032 2007 10-K 4.b.iii 02/22/2008

iii 4.80% Notes Due June 15 2015 10-0 4.b.i 08/04/2005

iv 6.125% Notes Due October 2016 2006 10-K 4.b.ivi 02/27/2007

Floating Rate Notes Due 2010 and 10-0 4.b.i 05/03/2007

vi 5.85% Notes Due 2017 10-0 4.b.ii 05/03/2007

4.b.ii Supplemental Indenture dated as of 2006 10-K 4.b.iii 02/27/2007

November 30 2006 to the Indenture dated

February 12 2001 by and between Masco

Corporation and Bank of New York

Trust Company as Trustee

4.b.iii Second Supplemental Indenture between Masco

Corporation and J.P Morgan Trust Company
National Association as trustee dated as of

December 23 2004 including form of Zero

Coupon Convertible Senior Note Series due

2031
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Exhibit Filing Filed

No Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Date Herewith

4.c U.S $2 billion 5-Year Revolving Credit Agreement

dated as of November 2004 by and among
Masco Corporation and Masco Europe S.Æ.r.l as

borrowers the banks party thereto as lenders

JR Morgan Securities Inc and Citigroup Global

Markets Inc as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint

Book Runners and Citibank N.A as Syndication

Agent Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation as

Documentation Agent and J.P Morgan Chase

Bank National Association as Administrative

Agent

as amended by Amendment No dated 8-K 02/15/2006

February 10 2006 and

ii as amended by Amendment No dated as 0-Q 04/30/2009

of April 22 2009

Note Other instruments notes or extracts from agreements defining the rights of holders of long-term debt

of Masco Corporation or its subsidiaries have not been filed since in each case the total amount of

long-term debt permiffed thereunder does not exceed 10 percent of Masco Corporations

consolidated assets and ii such instruments notes and extracts will be furnished by Masco

Corporation to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request

Note Exhibits 0.a through 0.n constitute the management contracts and executive compensatory plans

or arrangements in which certain of the Directors and executive officers of the Company participate

0.a Masco Corporation 1991 Long Term Stock 2006 10-K 0.a 02/27/2007

Incentive Plan as amended and restated

October 26 2006

Forms of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

for awards prior to January 2005 and

for awards on and after January 2005

ii Forms of Restoration Stock Option

iii Forms of Stock Option Grant

iv Forms of Stock Option Grant for Non-

Employee Directors and

Forms of amendment to Award Agreements 2005 10-K 0.a 03/02/2006

0.b.i Masco Corporation 2005 Long Term Stock

Incentive Plan as amended May 12 2009

Form of Restricted Stock Award 2005 10-K 0.bi 03/02/2006

ii Form of Stock Option Grant 2005 10-K 0.bii 03/02/2006

iii Form of Restoration Stock Option 2005 10-K 0.biii 03/02/2006

iv Form of Stock Option Grant for Non- 2005 10-K 0.biv 03/02/2006

Employee Directors

Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock

Awards for awards granted on or after

January 2009 and

vi Terms and Conditions of Non-Qualified Stock

Option Grants for options granted on or after

January 2009
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Exhibit Filing Filed

No Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Date Herewith

0.b.ii Non-Employee Directors Equity Program under 2007 10-K 0.b.ii 02/22/2008

Mascos

2005 Long Term Stock Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement 2007 10-K 0.b.iii 02/22/2008

and

ii Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement 2007 10-K 0.b.iiii 02/22/2008

10.c Forms of Masco Corporation Supplemental 2008 10-K 10.c 02/17/2009

Executive Retirement and Disability Plan

Supplemental Executive Retirement and

Disability Plan between Masco Corporation

and Barry Silverman and

ii Forms of Amendment freezing benefit

accruals under the Masco Corporation

Supplemental Executive Retirement and

Disability Plan

0.d Masco Corporation 1997 Non-Employee Directors 2005 10-K 0.e 03/02/2006

Stock Plan as amended and restated

October 27 2005

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement 2005 10-K 0.ei 03/02/2006

ii Form of Stock Option Grant and 2005 10-K 0.eii 03/02/2006

iii Form of amendment to Award Agreements 2005 10-K 0.eiii 03/02/2006

0.e Other compensatory arrangements for executive 2008 10-K 0.e 02/17/2009

officers

0.f Masco Corporation 2004 Restricted Stock Award

Program

0.g Compensation of Non-Employee Directors 2007 0-K 0.g 02/22/2008

0.h Amended and Restated Masco Corporation 2008 10-K 0.h 02/17/2009

Retirement Benefit Restoration Plan effective

January 1995 as Amended and Restated

effective October 22 2008

Amendment dated November 16 2009 to

the amended and Restated Masco

Corporation Retirement Benefit Restoration

Plan

0.i Letter Agreement dated June 29 2009 between 10-0 10 06/30/2009

Richard Manoogian and Masco Corporation

superseding Letter Agreement dated April

2007 between Richard Manoogian and Masco

Corporation

0.j Letter from Masco Corporation to Donald 2007 0-K 10 02/22/2008

DeMarie regarding relocation arrangements

O.k Release and Consulting Agreement and related

Letter Agreement dated December 31 2009

between Masco Corporation and Barry

Silverman
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Incorporated By Reference

Exhibit Filing Filed

No Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Date Herewith

10.1 Amended and Restated Shareholders 2006 10-K 10.i 02/27/2007

Agreement dated as of November 27 2006
between RHJ International SA Asahi Tec

Corporation and The Principal Company
Shareholders Listed on Schedule thereto

0.m Shareholders Agreement dated as of June 2006 10-K
0.j 02/27/2007

2002 as amended and restated as of July 19
2002 by and among Trimas Corporation

Metaldyne Company LLC and the Heartland

Entities listed therein and the Other Shareholders

named therein or added as parties thereto from

time to time

0.n Amendment No dated as of August 31 2006 2006 10-K O.k 02/27/2007

to Shareholders Agreement dated as of June

2002 as amended and restated as of July 19

2002 by and among Trimas Corporation

Metaldyne Company LLC Heartland Industrial

Partners L.P and the Heartland Entities listed

therein and the parties identified on the signature

pages thereto as Metaldyne Shareholder

Parties

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined
Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends

21 List of Subsidiaries

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm relating to Masco Corporations

Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial

Statement Schedule

31 .a Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by

Rule 3a-1 4a/i 5d-i 4a
31 .b Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by

Rule 3a-1 4a/i 5d-1 4a
32 Certifications required by Rule 3a-1 4b or

Rule 5d-1 4b and Section 1350 of Chapter 63

of Title 18 of the United States Code

100 XBRL-Related Documents

101 Interactive Data File

The Company will furnish to its stockholders copy of any of the above exhibits not included herein

upon the written request of such stockholder and the payment to the Company of the reasonable expenses
incurred by the Company in furnishing such copy or copies
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Exhibit 12

MASCO CORPORATION

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock

Dividends
Dollars in Milkons

Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004

Earnings Before Income Taxes Preferred Stock

Dividends and Fixed Charges

Loss income from continuing operations before

income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting

change net $151 $193 876 891 $1447 $1630

Deduct equity in undistributed earnings of fifty-

percent-or- less-owned companies

Add interest on indebtedness net 224 228 258 241 246 214

Add amortization of debt expense

Add estimated interest factor for rentals 44 51 55 52 40 33

Earnings before income taxes minority interest

cumulative effect of accounting change net fixed

charges and preferred stock dividends $122 $89 $1192 $1187 $1738 $1882

Fixed Charges

Interest on indebtedness $221 $228 259 241 244 214

Amortization of debt expense

Estimated interest factor for rentals 44 51 55 52 40 33

Total fixed charges $270 $283 319 297 290 253

Preferred stock dividendsa

Combined fixed charges and preferred stock

dividends $270 $283 319 297 290 261

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges i3 3.7 4.0 6.0 7.4

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and

preferred stock dividends .5 03 3.7 4.0 6.0 7.2

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and

preferred stock dividends excluding certain items 1.5 2.2 4.2 5.4 6.1 7.2

Represents amount of income before provision for income taxes required to meet the preferred stock

dividend requirements of the Company

Excludes the 2009 non-cash pre-tax charge for goodwill impairment of $262 million non-cash pre-tax

impairment charge for financial investments of $10 million and litigation expense of $7 million 2008 non

cash pre-tax impairment charge for goodwill and other intangible assets of $467 million financial

investments of $58 million and litigation expense of $9 million 2007 non-cash pie-tax impairment

charges for goodwill and other intangible assets of $1 19 million and the non-cash pre-tax charge for

financial investments of $22 million 2006 non-cash pre-tax impairment charges for goodwill and

financial investments of $317 million and $101 million respectively and the pre-tax income related to the

Behr litigation settlement of $1 million the 2005 pre-tax income related to the Behr litigation settlement of

$6 million and the non-cash pre-tax impairment charge for financial investments of $45 million and the

2004 pie-tax income related to the Behr litigation settlement of $30 million and the pie-tax impairment

charge of $21 million related to marketable security

Mixed Sources
Prodoot groop fron well-mono 04

forootO 000frOIlOd 000rce n.j
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Information
COMPANY PROFILE
Masco Corporation is one of the worlds largest

manufacturers of brand name products for the home

improvement and new home construction markets

The Company is also leading provider of variety

of installed products and services including insula

tion for homebuilders

Our products include faucets kitchen and bath cabi

nets paints and stains bath and shower units spas

showering and plumbing specialties windows and

decorative hardware

As of December 31 2009 the Company had

more than 35000 employees and approximately

90 manufacturing facilities Mascos principal manu

facturing facilities are located throughout the United

States International operations are located principally

in Europe

EXECUTIVE OFFICES
Masco Corporation

21001 Van Born Road

Taylor Ml 481 80-1340

Phone 313-274-7400 Fax 313-792-4177

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers Plaza

1900 St Antoine

Detroit Ml 48226-2263

STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION
Masco Corporations common stock is traded on the

New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MAS

INTERNET CONTACT
Current information about Masco Corporation

can be found by visiting our Web site at

wwmasco.com or you may contact us via

e-mail at webmastermascohq .com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Additional information about the Company is

available without charge to shareholders who

direct request to

Maria Duey
Vice PresidentInvestor Relations

and Communications

Masco Corporation

21001 Van Born Road

Taylor Ml 481 80-1340

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
The 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Masco

Corporation will be held at the executive offices of

the Company on May 11 2010 at 1000a.m E.D.T

TRANSFER AGENT REGISTRAR AND
DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT
Answers to many of your shareholder questions and

requests for forms are available by visiting the BNY

Mellon Shareowner Services Web site at

wrw bnymellon com/shareowner/isd

Send Certificates For Transfer to

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services

P.O Box 358015

Pittsburgh PA 15252-8015

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Masco Corporation has appointed BNY Mellon

Shareowner Services to serve as agent for its

Dividend Reinvestment Plan All inquiries regarding

the Plan should be sent to

Masco Corporation

c/o BNY Mellon Shareowner Services

P.O Box 358035

Pittsburgh PA 15252-8035

Shareholder inquiries regarding lost certificates

should be directed to

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services

P.O Box 358317

Pittsburgh PA 15252-8317

Duplicate mailings and other inquiries

Multiple shareholders residing at one address and

holding shares through bank or broker may receive

only one Annual Report and Proxy Statement This

householding procedure reduces duplicate mailings

and Company expenses Shareholders who wish to

opt out of householding should contact their bank or

broker

Shares owned by one person but held in different

forms of the same name may result in duplicate

mailings of shareholder information at added ex

pense to the Company Please notify BNY Mellon

Shareowner Services to eliminate such duplication

General inquiries and address changes should be

directed as follows

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services

480 Washington Blvd

Jersey City NJ 07310-1900

Phone 866-230-0666 in the U.S
201 -680-6685 outside of the U.S
800-231 -5469 hearing impairedlTD phone

E-Mail Address shrrelations@bnymellon.com
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